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OUR VISION

Based on a foundation of trust, to be the most respected
financial institution, delighting customers with excellence,
enjoying the loyalty of a dedicated team, meeting the
expectations of regulators and participating in social
causes while providing superior returns to shareholders.






MR. KassiM PAREKH

We mourn the passing away of our
Founder Chairman and CEO, Mr. Kassim Parekh
on the 9th of February, 2017.

Our Kassim Bhai will be dearly missed and forever remembered.
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HABIBMETRO

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd. will be
held at the Moosa D. Dessai Auditorium, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, G-31/8, Chartered Accountants Avenue,
Clifton, Karachi on Thursday, 30 March 2017 at 9:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts, standalone as well as consolidated, of the Bank for the year ended
31 December 2016 together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon.

2. Toapprove, as recommended by the Board of Directors, final dividend @ 30% (Rs. 3/- per share) in the form of cash.
3. Toelect 8 (eight) Directors as fixed by the Board.

4. To appoint Auditors for the financial year ending 31 December 2017 and fix their remuneration. The present Auditors, Messrs.
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as Special Resolution, with or without modification, to amend the
Articles of Association of the Bank in order to enable the e-voting mechanism as prescribed in the Companies (E-Voting)
Regulations, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

“Resolved that, subject to obtaining the requisite approvals, the Articles of Association of the Bank be and are hereby amended
by adding a new Article 81A, appearing after the existing Article 81, as follows:

81A The provisions and requirements for electronic voting by the members, as prescribed under the applicable laws and
regulations from time to time, shall be deemed to be incorporated in these Articles, irrespective of the other provisions of
these Articles and notwithstanding anything contradictory therein. Members are allowed to appoint members as proxies
for purpose of electronic voting to the extent permitted under the applicable laws and regulations.

Further resolved that the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the Bank be and is hereby authorized to take
or cause to be taken any and all actions necessary and incidental for the purposes of altering the Articles of the Bank, and make
necessary filings and complete legal formalities as may be required to implement the aforesaid resolution.’

6. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has allowed companies to circulate the annual audited accounts
to members via CD or DVD or USB at their registered addresses at management's discretion, subject to the conditions specified
there for. Accordingly, consent of the member is sought for transmission of the annual audited accounts of the Company via

CD or DVD or USB and to pass, if deemed appropriate, with or without modification, the following ordinary resolution:

"Resolved that the Company may transmit the annual audited accounts to the members via CD or DVD or USB instead of hard
copies as allowed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Further resolved that the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary be and hereby are authorized to do all such acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to the foregoing resolution”

7. To approve expenses related to the Chairman of the Board.

8. To approve remuneration paid to the directors during the year ended 31 December 2016.



A statement of material fact under section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to the aforesaid special business
to be transacted at the said Annual General Meeting is being sent to the shareholders along with the notice.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

9. To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

RAZA MOHSIN QIZILBASH
Karachi: 22 February 2017 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. The number of directors to be elected pursuant to Section 178(1) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, has been fixed at 8 (eight).
The following are the retiring directors.

Mr. Ali S. Habib, Mr. Anjum Z. Igbal, Mr. Firasat Ali, Mr. Mohomed Bashir, Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib, Mr. Muhammad H. Habib,
Mr. Sohail Hasan and Mr. Tariq kram.

2. Any member desirous to contest the election of Directors shall file the following with the Company Secretary of the Bank at its
Registered Office, Spencer's Building, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, not later than fourteen days before the day of the above
said meeting:

a) His/ her intention to offer himself/herself for the election in terms of Section 178(3) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984
together with a consent in Form 28. He/She should also confirm that:

(i) He/Sheis not ineligible to become a director of the Bank under any applicable laws and regulations (including listing
regulations of Stock Exchanges).

(i) Neither he / she nor his/her spouse is engaged in the business of brokerage or is a sponsor, director or officer of a
corporate brokerage house.

(iii) He/ Sheis not serving as a director in more than seven listed companies simultaneously. Provided that this limit shall
not include the directorships in the listed subsidiaries of a listed holding company.

b)  Fit & Proper Test, Affidavit and a completed questionnaire as required in terms of BPRD Circular No. 4 of April 23, 2007.

3. The shareholders' approval is being sought to amend the Articles of Association of the Bank in order to give effect to the
requirements of Companies (E-Voting) Regulation, 2016, issued by SECP, thereby facilitating voting through electronic means
for the shareholders of the Bank. As recommended by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on February 22, 2017, it is
intended to propose the resolution stated in the notice to be passed as Special Resolution in order to effectuate the above.

4. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend the meeting
and vote for him/her. Proxy form is enclosed with the Annual report. A proxy must be a member of the Bank. In order to be
effective, proxies must be received at the Registered Office of the Bank, duly stamped, signed and witnessed, not less than 48
(forty-eight) hours before the meeting.
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5. CDCaccount holders and sub-account holders are required to bring with them their original National Identity Card or passport
along with the participants ID numbers and their account numbers in order to facilitate identification. In case of corporate entity,
the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee is also required.

6. Members are requested to notify the change of addresses, if any.
7. The share transfer book of the Bank will remain closed from 17 March 2017 to 30 March 2017 (both days inclusive).
MANDATORY SUBMISSION OF CNIC:

Pursuant to the directives of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), Dividend Warrants shall mandatorily bear the
CNIC numbers of shareholders. Therefore, shareholders, having shares in physical form, are requested to submit a copy of their CNIC
(if not already provided) to the Bank's Share Registrar M/s. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-8, Block
‘B! SM.CH.S,, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, without any delay.

In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the CNIC in respect of member having physical shareholding, Dividend Warrant could
be withheld in terms of section 251(2)(a) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, which will be released by the Share Registrar only upon
compliance with the aforesaid notifications.

Deduction of Withholding Tax from Dividend:

The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2016 has made certain amendments in section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies.
These tax rates are as under:

(@) Forfilers of income tax returns: 12.5%
(b) For non-filers of income tax returns: 20%

To enable the company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 12.50% instead of 20%, all members whose names
are not entered in the Active Tax-Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), despite the fact that
they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL at the earliest possible (as and when declared) otherwise
tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20% instead of 12.50%.

For Shareholders holding their shares jointly, as per the clarification issued by the FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately
on 'Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions. Therefore, all
shareholders who hold shares jointly are required to provide shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s)
in respect of shares held by them to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in writing as follows:

Folio / CDC Total Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder(s)
Account No shares
Name and CNIC No. Shareholding Name and CNIC No. Shareholding
Proportion Proportion
(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)




In case of non-receipt, the shareholding will be divided among the joint-holders equally. For any query / difficulty / information, the
members may contact the Bank's Share Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, at the following address, phone/fax numbers or
e-mail address:

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, PE.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400
Tel: 0800-23275, Fax No. (92-21) 34326053, Email: info@cdcpak.com, URL: www.cdcpakistan.com

Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Optional)

Under Section 250 (1) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 a shareholder may, if so desire, direct a company to pay dividend directly
into his/her bank account. Shareholders wishing to exercise this option may submit their application to the Company's Share Registrar,
giving particulars relating to their name, folio number, bank account/IBAN number, title of account and complete mailing address
of the bank. CDC account holders should submit their request directly to their broker (participant) / CDC.

Electronic Transmission of Financial Statements and Notices:

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through SRO 787 (1)/2014 dated 8th September 2014 allowed the companies to
circulate its Annual Audited Financial Statements along with Company's notice of Annual General Meeting to its members through
e-mail. Those shareholders who wish to receive the Company's Annual Report through e-mail are requested to send an e-mail at
company.secretary@habibmetro.com mentioning their Name, CNIC No,, Folio No. & E-mail address at which they wish to receive
Annual Report. Please note that Annual Report is also being placed at the link: http://habibmetro.com/financial-reports/.

In case any member who has provided consent to receive audited financial statements and notice through e-mail, subsequently request
for hard copy of audited financial statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within 7 days of the receipt of such request.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACT UNDER SECTION 160 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the
Bank to be held on March 30, 2017.

Approval of the shareholders will be sought for the following:

1. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as Special Resolution, with or without modification, to amend the
Articles of Association of the Bank in order to enable the e-voting mechanism as prescribed in the Companies (E-Voting)
Regulations, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

“Resolved that, subject to obtaining the requisite approvals, the Articles of Association of the Bank be and are hereby amended
by adding a new Article 81A, appearing after the existing Article 81, as follows:

81A The provisions and requirements for electronic voting by the members, as prescribed under the applicable laws and
regulations from time to time, shall be deemed to be incorporated in these Articles, irrespective of the other provisions of
these Articles and notwithstanding anything contradictory therein. Members are allowed to appoint members as proxies
for purpose of electronic voting to the extent permitted under the applicable laws and regulations.

Further resolved that the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the Bank be and is hereby authorized to take
or cause to be taken any and all actions necessary and incidental for the purposes of altering the Articles of the Bank, and make
necessary filings and complete legal formalities as may be required to implement the aforesaid resolution.”
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The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has allowed companies to circulate the annual audited accounts
to members via CD or DVD or USB at their registered addresses, at management discretion, subject to the conditions specified
therefor. Accordingly, consent of the member is sought for transmission of the annual audited accounts of the Company via
CD or DVD or USB and to pass, if deemed appropriate, with or without modification, the following ordinary resolutions:

“Resolved that the Company may transmit the annual audited accounts to the members via CD or DVD or USB instead of hard
copies as allowed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Further resolved that the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary be and hereby are authorized to do all such acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to the foregoing resolution.’

To approve expenses of Rs. 5,482 thousand incurred for provision of appropriate office premises and the administrative expenses
pertaining to office, staff and the related facilities by the Bank to the Chairman for fulfillment of responsibilities as vested by the
Board of Directors in his capacity as Chairman of the Bank, and to approve provision of Bank maintained vehicles and
reimbursement of certain expenses as approved by the Board of Directors and to pass the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution with or without modification, addition or deletion:

“Resolved that the expenses of Rs. 5,482 incurred for providing office premises and the administrative expenses pertaining to
office, staff and the related facilities to the Chairman of the Board of Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 be and

is hereby approved.

Further resolved that Chairman is entitled for Bank maintained vehicles & security services and reimbursement of expenses
incurred on travelling, club & entertainment bills and utilities bills at actual”

To approve remuneration paid to the directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and pass the following resolution as
an ordinary resolution, with or without modification, addition or deletion:

"Resolved that the remuneration paid to the Directors of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2016, as disclosed in
the note 37 to the Annual Accounts of the Bank, be and is hereby approved”.

None of the Directors are interested except to the extent stated above in the special business.



CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
e

On behalf of the directors of Habib Metropolitan Bank, it gives me immense pleasure to present this report, together with the financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2016. The operating financial results and appropriations, as recommended
by the Board of Directors, are summarized below:

Dear Shareholders,

Rupees in ‘000

Profit before provisions and tax 11,006,314
Provision for non-performing loans, investments & other assets (672,567)
Profit before tax 10,333,747
Taxation - Current (3,517,238)
- Prior years (581,308)
- Deferred (115,877)
(4,214,423)
Profit after tax 6,119,324
Un-appropriated profit brought forward 9,931,633
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax 2022
Other comprehensive income 19,688
Profit available for appropriation 16,072,667
Appropriations:
- Transfer to Statutory Reserve (1,223,865)
- Cashdividend (Rs. 2.00 per share) - 2015 (2,095,663)
(3,319,528)
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 12,753,139

The Directors are pleased to propose a final cash dividend of Rs. 3/- per share (30%) for the year under review.

By Allah's Grace, your Bank continued to make steady progress. Bank's deposits increased to Rs. 431 billion as compared to
Rs. 403 billion at the end of previous year, whereas gross advances increased to Rs. 160 billion at year-end and total assets increased
to Rs. 526 billion.

HabibMetro's profit before taxation is over Rs. 10 billion for the year 2016. The performance translates into an earning of Rs. 5.84 per share.
At year-end, HabibMetro's equity stands at Rs. 37.16 billion, with a capital adequacy level of 18.15% against the required 10.65%.

This review forms an integral part of the Directors' Report to the Shareholders.

In February, the Founder Chairman & Chief Executive of the Bank - Mr. Kassim Parekh - passed away. Mr. Parekh played a vital role in establishing
HabibMetro Bank and has been an integral part of the Bank's growth since its inception. May Allah rest his soul in eternal peace.

I'would like to take this opportunity to place on record our sincere gratitude to Ministry of Finance, State Bank of Pakistan and
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their support and continued guidance and to our valued customers for their
trust and support. | thanked the staff members for their devotion and diligence. We bow our heads to Allah and pray for His blessings
and continued guidance.

On behalf of the Board

MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB
Karachi: 22 February 2017 Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present to you the annual accounts of Habib Metropolitan Bank (HabibMetro Bank), for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016.

ECONOMIC AND BANKING REVIEW

The economy witnessed progress with increased investor confidence, improved law and order situation, stable economic and political
policies and the promise of CPEC-driven activity. Inflation marked at 3.9 percent during the second half of the year. Going forward
in 2017, inflationary pressures are expected to remain below the targeted rate of 6 percent.

Current Account deficit widened to USD 3.6 billion in the second half of 2016 compared to a deficit of USD 1.7 billion in the
corresponding period of 2015. This widening of the external deficit was driven by increased CPEC-related imports, continued decline
in export activity and a deceleration in remittances. However, this was offset by increased multi- and bi-lateral funding and investment
flows, leading to an overall surplus of USD 0.2 billion in the balance of payments.

Fiscal discipline was facilitated by a net retirement of government borrowing from the banking sector. This, in addition to the relaxed
interest regime and low interest rates, has resulted in an increase in flow of private sector credit, which amounted to Rs. 375 billion
in the second half of 2016 compared to Rs. 282 billion in the corresponding period of 2015. Demand for consumer finance has also
exhibited a similar increasing trend.

Augmenting by 20 percent year-on-year, the banking sector's deposit base amounted to Rs. 11.2 trillion at the end of 2016; meanwhile,
advances grew by 16.5 percent and stood at Rs. 5.71 trillion and investments grew by 7.55 percent to be recorded at Rs. 7.23 trillion.
As of end of September 2016, the sector's stock of NPLs marked at Rs. 631 billion, and the infection ratio stood at 12.33%.

BANK'S PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR

By Allah's grace, the Bank's profit-after-tax amounted to Rs. 6.12 billion at the end of year 2016. EPS marked at Rs. 5.84 and return
on Shareholder's Equity stood at 17.41 percent.

During the year under review, the Bank's deposits increased to Rs. 431 billion whereas gross Advances were recorded at Rs. 159.8
billion. Net Equity stood at Rs. 37.2 billion with Capital Adequacy marking at a comfortable 18.15%.

COMMITMENTS

No material changes in commitments affecting the financial position of the Bank have occurred between the end of financial year
of the Bank and the date of the report.

CREDIT RATING

By the grace of Allah, for the sixteenth consecutive year, the credit rating of the Bank has been maintained at AA+ (double A plus)
for long term and AT+ (A one plus) for short term by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited. These ratings denote a very high
credit quality, a very low expectation of credit risk and a very strong capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.

AWARDS

HabibMetro Bank was awarded as 'Leading Partner in Pakistan' for the 2nd consecutive year in 2016, in addition to the 'Leading SME
Trade Bank' award, by the Asian Development Bank. The Bank also received the 'Best Trade Financing Through Shariah Finance' award
at the Regional Trade Conference on Islamic Banking & Finance 2016.



ENHANCED REACH TO OUR CUSTOMERS

With Allah's blessings, HabibMetro enhanced its outreach by opening 31 new branches in 2016; 10 new cities were added as the
Bank increased its footprint to 307 branches in 87 cities across Pakistan including 25 Islamic banking branches.

Your Bank enjoys correspondent relationships with banks of repute in more than 100 countries, with a large number of banks having
formal credit lines for the Bank. HabibMetro provides comprehensive banking services and products, inclusive of specialized trade
finance products, along with technologically advanced services like secured SMS and Web Banking services, globally accepted Visa
Debit Cards and nationwide ATM network to its customers across the country.

Your Bank's subsidiary company Habib Metropolitan Financial Services (HMFS), provides convenient and trusted equity brokerage
and custody services. Furthermore, Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management Company has been established with a prime objective
of floating and managing modaraba.

ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY CHANNELS

Maintaining exemplary service quality remains fundamental to your Bank's strategy. During the year, the Bank installed 52 new
Automated Teller Machines (ATMs), including 3 offsite ATMs, taking the total number of ATMs to 320 across the country. The Bank's
Visa Debit Cards and SMS & Web Banking subscriptions also witnessed a significant increase during this period.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The total strength of the HabibMetro family has grown from 4,277 to 4,597 during the year. The Bank has been largely catering to
the training needs of its human resource body internally by conducting in-house courses as well as sending staff for external trainings.

Your Bank remains an equal opportunity employer providing exciting careers and growth to prospective bankers.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Being a conscientious corporate citizen, your Bank acknowledges its corporate social responsibilities and continues to make regular
contributions to a host of non-profit / social organizations. During the year, the Bank extended assistance in three major areas i.e.
education, health care and welfare spending for the under-privileged. These donations amount to Rs. 92.4 million.

The Citizens Foundation remains one of the larger recipients and through them the Bank is running six schools in under privileged rural
areas where more than 1,000 children are enrolled. A detail of your Bank's social contributions can be found in the notes to the accounts.

Your Bank continues to be one of the nation's leading taxpayers with more than Rs. 4.90 billion paid as direct taxes to the Government
of Pakistan during the year 2016. Furthermore, an additional amount of about Rs. 821 billion comprising indirect tax deductions and
recoveries for the exchequer was collected through the Bank's network.

CUSTOMER GRIEVANCES HANDLING

Customer satisfaction is considered as an important driver of the Bank's success. For fair and efficient resolution of customer grievances,
the Bank has transformed its complaint handling mechanism whereby various initiatives were taken including automation of complaint
handling mechanism, revision of complaint's turn-around-time, improvement of escalation matrix, swift monitoring of complaints
and corrective measures on repetitive complaints.

While handling customer complaints received from various channels, the Bank maintains a practical and rational approach for fair

and amicable outcome to the customer grievances. 4,951 complaints were received during 2016; with the efficient and effective
complaint handling mechanism, the average resolution time is approximately 7 working days.

10



HABIBMETRO

Customer Grievances handling is centralized for improved transparency and enhanced control environment The Bank is committed
to providing excellent services and versatile products to its customers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD MEETINGS

Details of the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Sub-Committees held during the year 2016 and the attendance by each
director/ committee member are given as under:

: ] Human Resource Risk
Narme of Dirctors Drectors | Commitiee | Commitiee | &Remuneration | & Compliance
Late Mr. Kassim Parekh* 3/3 - - - _
Mr. Ali S. Habib 3/4 4/4 _ _ _
Mr. Anjum Z. Igbal* - - - - 11
M. Firasat Ali 4/4 4/4 - _ _
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib** 4/4 - 1/1 2/2 3/3
Mr. Mohomed Bashir 4/4 - - - -
Mr. Muhammad H. Habib 3/4 - 0/1 - -
Mr. Sohail Hasan 4/4 - - - 4/4
Mr. Tarig lkram 4/4 4/4 - 2/2 -
Mr. Sirajuddin Aziz 4/4 - 1/1 2/2 4/4
Meetings held | 4 | 4 | 1 | 2 | 4

* Late Mr. Kassim Parekh resigned from the Board of Directors on 19 August 2016 and Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib was elected as
Chairman of the Board. Mr. Anjum Z. Igbal was co-opted to fill the casual vacancy on 20 October 2016 in place of Mr. Kassim
Parekh who sadly passed away on 9 February 2017.

** Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib resigned from the membership of Risk and Compliance Committee on 20 October 2016.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholdings as on 31 December 2016 is annexed to the report.

AUDITORS

The present auditors KPMG Taseer Hadi and Co,, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible offers themselves for reappointment.

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of KPMG
Taseer Hadi and Co,, Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Bank for the year ending 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

1. The financial statements prepared by the Bank, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes
in equity.
2. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Bank.

3. Appropriate accounting policies and estimates have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements.



4. International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements and
departure therefrom, if any, has been adequately disclosed.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
6. There are no significant doubts upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern.
7. There has been no departure from the best practices of the corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.
8. The key operating and financial data of last six years of the Bank is placed below:
Rs. in million
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Shareholders' Equity 37,165 33,120 30,200 27,364 26,002 24,190
Paid-up capital 10478 10,478 10478 10478 10,478 10,478
Total assets 526,606 489,879 397,380 311,454 304416 291,935
Deposits 430,888 403,355 320,023 247 644 217,798 185,400
Advances 142,962 132,647 134,751 129,834 110,444 113,347
Investments 314,619 292,779 221,761 142,444 160,850 147,525
Profit pre-tax 10,334 12,539 7,312 5112 5,044 4630
Profit post-tax 6,119 7,656 4927 3,526 3,406 3,281
Earnings per share (Rs) 5.84 7.31 470 337 3.25 313
Dividend (%) 30 (0) 20 (O)(F) 25C 20C 20C 15C
20 Q)
No. of staff 4,597 4277 3914 3,559 3,284 3,073
No. of branches / sub branches 307 276 240 214 183 163

Value of investments of Provident Fund and Gratuity Scheme are as under:
- Provident Fund Rs. 2,398 million as at 30 June 2016.
- Gratuity Fund Rs. 759 million as at 31 December 2015.

RISK MANAGEMENT
STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Risk Management aspects are embedded in HabibMetro Bank's strategy and organization structure. The Bank has devised a cohesive risk
management structure for credit, operations, liquidity and market risk, with an integrated approach and strengthened internal controls.

The Bank's entire branch network is on-line and its state-of-the-art processing system is secure and has adequate capacity. Separation
of duties is built into the Bank's system and organization. The Internal Audit Division conducts independent, risk-based review and
verification of the Bank's branches and major functions throughout the year for evaluation of the control system. Comprehensive
internal reports and MIS are additional tools for management in risk control. The Risk Management Division is staffed with professionals,
covering all aspects of risks.

The Bank's Central Management Committee, along with Board Risk and Compliance Committee and Board of Directors, oversee the
Bank's strategy, efforts and processes related to risk management.

CREDIT RISK

HabibMetro maintains a strategy to control credit risk through product, geography, industry and customer diversification. The Bank
extends trade and working capital financing, keeping the major portion of its exposure on a short-term and self-liquidating basis.
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A major portion of the Bank's credit portfolio is priced on a floating rate basis using KIBOR as a reference, which minimizes interest
rate risk. The risk inherent in extending credit is further mitigated by robust credit granting procedures, which have been structured
to ensure proper evaluation, adequacy of security, and monitoring of exposures on an ongoing basis. This is further augmented by
centralized trade processing and credit administration.

MARKET / LIQUIDITY RISK

The Asset and Liability Management Committee reviews, recommends and monitors limits for FX and Money market exposures. The
strategy is to balance risk, liquidity and profitability. The Board-approved investment policy focuses on, amongst other aspects, asset
allocation and operating guidelines. Furthermore, the monitoring of market and liquidity risk is ensured in line with Board approved
Market and Liquidity Risk Management Policy.

STRESS TESTING

Stress testing techniques are used to assess risk exposures across the institution and to estimate the changes in the value of the
portfolio, when exposed to various risk factors. Risk factors used in stress testing models are Interest Rate, Credit, Equity Price, Exchange
Rate and Liquidity. The Bank's stress testing methodology ensures adherence to the SBP guidelines as well. The stress testing results
depict a solid and resilient financial position of your Bank.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational Risk is prevalent in all area of banking activities and remains a major challenge worldwide. Identification of this risk prior
to the events, and building mitigating controls for the same, have always been the Bank's priority. The Bank has a dedicated Operational
Risk Management Unit at the Risk Management Division for carrying out Risk and Control Self-Assessment. This is reviewed by the
process owners (first line of defense) and thereafter by the Bank's Management, Board Committees and the Board. Accordingly,
remedial actions are undertaken. It is imperative that all policies and procedures are reviewed by Risk Management, inter-alia by
Operational risk and Internal control Unit of the Bank. This is to enhance the Bank's sustainability and for ensuring achievement of
planned objectives. The Bank also has a well-established Business Continuity Plan, an Information Security Unit and strong independent
internal audit set up.

NEW CAPITAL ACCORD - BASEL Il

Recent financial crises have demonstrated numerous weaknesses in the global regulatory framework and in banks' risk management
practices. In response, regulatory authorities have increased their focus on strengthening global capital and liquidity rules. Basel lll
aims to improve risk management and governance as well as strengthen banks' transparency and disclosure.

In line with global practice, the SBP has stipulated Basel lll capital adequacy guidelines for banks in Pakistan. These instructions were
made effective from 31 December 2013 in a phased manner with full implementation intended by 31 December, 2019.

The Bank has carried out an assessment of its future capital requirements in accordance with Basel Il regulations, which are being
phased in over subsequent periods, and the existing capital structure comfortably supports future growth. The Bank's capital adequacy
stands at 18.21% as at the year-end against requirement of 10.65% as per SBP Basel Ill road map.

COMPLIANCE

Your Bank continued to strengthen compliance oversight across its network during the year that included enhancing stringent KYC /
AML controls and regulatory compliance awareness. The Compliance function provides support and counsel to management and
staff on compliance and regulatory issues. All new policies and procedures, initiatives, products, services, business processes etc. are
reviewed from a Compliance perspective along with maintaining relationship with regulatory authorities. It is also involved in
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developing and maintaining a regulatory library that includes circulars issued by the SBP and other relevant regulatory authorities.
Furthermore, facilitation and liaison with the SBP and its on-site Inspection teams is a key role played by this unit to ensure smooth
conduct of the SBP inspection.

With the highly challenging and demanding global AML / CFT environment, Bank's AML function is fully committed towards
implementation of highest standards of compliance within the Bank and ensures management and employees adhere to these
standards. The Bank's state of the art Transaction Monitoring System (TMS) prevents money laundering activities through the Bank's
channels, products and services. The TMS monitors out-of-pattern transactions and reviews different transaction activity through
multiple AML scenarios embedded in it. In addition, the Bank has a robust Customer Due Diligence (CDD) process that allows
the Bank to document / update each profile of customer and conduct comprehensive CDD as per regulatory requirements. Being
a trade-oriented bank, Cross Border Transactions are screened and pre-approved by Compliance to ensure that no business is
conducted with sanctioned entities or countries. In addition, AML Unit in collaboration with Regulatory Risk and Compliance unit
reviews products and policies from AML perspective.

Your Bank has also participated as a Foreign Financial Institution (FFI) and is fully compliant with the Foreign Account Tax Compliance
Act (FATCA) by collecting additional information and documentation from prospective clients, in order to determine whether or not
they have any US tax reporting responsibilities. FATCA is a US legislation aimed at preventing tax evasion by US Persons and Companies
that came into effect on 1 July 2014. To ensure compliance with the FATCA legislation, Compliance division facilitates coordination,
training, development and monitoring of FATCA requirements.

Compliance also assures identification, monitoring and resolution of regulatory issues (including follow-up) through on-site reviews
by Area Compliance Officers (ACOs), who also provide training to the branch staff. Furthermore, ACOs also play a key role in enhancing
the compliance culture in the Bank by ensuring improving standards of adherence with regulations at branch level.

Whilst focusing on creativity and innovation, Compliance function will continue to increase its effectiveness through professional
development of its staff and strengthening of functional solutions.

CONTROLS

Internal Control Unit (ICU) working as a part of the risk management team of the Bank is responsible for implementation of controls
within the business processes/ support functions as per the regulatory guidelines and good practices. The scope of ICU has been
enhanced for ensuring effective controls monitoring and plans to further strengthen the same. The Bank has a comprehensive
Business Continuity Plan (BCP) in place, which includes risk management strategies to prevent interruption of critical services caused
by a disaster event.

The Bank's operating system contains control aspects embedded into all processes and functions.

The Bank's organization structure and lines of authority are well-defined and processes throughout the Bank are governed by policies
and procedures approved by the Board. The Bank's accounting policies, practices and methodologies for various estimates have
been reviewed by external auditors.

SBP Internal Control Guidelines require the Bank's management to evaluate the effectiveness of overall set of internal controls. The
Bank has implemented a comprehensive Internal Control process and a stage wise roadmap for its implementation across the Bank
considering an internationally accepted Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission (COSO) Internal Control
- Integrated Framework, as envisaged under the SBP Internal Control Guidelines for Financial Reporting. The SBP Internal Control
Guidelines require the Bank's management to evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls. The Bank has devised a well-defined
and comprehensive Internal Control Program and a staged roadmap for its implementation.
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The Bank's core banking module relies on a state-of-the-art, award winning technology which has built-in risk mitigating features
such as access controls, segregation of duties, necessary maker-checker concept and extensive monitoring / MIS tools keeping the
overall operational risks to an acceptable level. Please refer to “The Statement of Internal Controls”annexed to this report.

INTERNAL AUDIT

While broadening risk awareness and assuring requlatory compliance, Internal Audit at HabibMetro is an important and independent
pillar of the Bank's control infrastructure that provides independent assurance to the management and the Board in assessing the Bank's
control environment. The department performs continuous reviews to improve the quality of the Bank's internal control environment,
ensuring an effective balance in safety and performance of processes and adding value towards the Bank's risk mitigation endeavors.

HabibMetro has an active Board Audit Committee functioning under the Code of Corporate Governance as stipulated by SECP and
as adopted by the SBP. The members of Board Audit Committee are Non-Executive Directors and its Chairman is an Independent Director.

Reporting directly to the Board Audit Committee, Internal Audit employees a risk-based and proactive approach to branches,
operational areas and key activities of the Bank with a significant emphasis on corrective actions and elimination of control lapses.
These reviews are focused on related key risk indicators and system weaknesses to identify control, cost and revenue efficiencies.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pakistan's economy is on a steady growth trajectory. IMF has upgraded Pakistan's growth forecast to 5% from a previous estimate
of 4.7%. Large scale manufacturing likely to record 6% growth in FY 17 against a growth of 4.8% in FY 16. Growth prospects,
CPEC-fuelled economic activity, relaxed interest regime and enhanced fiscal discipline indicate a further pick-up in flow of credit to
the private sector and business activity therein. The external account deficit remains a cause of concern with the stunted exports,
growing imports and decelerating remittances.

Going forward amidst a stable interest regime outlook in 2017, HabibMetro Bank remains committed to protecting its shareholders'
interests, while maximizing the value and service offered to its customers through a varied spectrum of financial products architected
upon an advanced technological platform. The Bank aims to target organic growth, mobilization of low-cost deposits, improvement
of asset quality and enhancement of cost efficiency.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

In the end, I would like to take this opportunity to place on record our sincere gratitude to the Board, Ministry of Finance, the SBP
and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their support and continued guidance and to our valued customers for
their trust and support. | thank the staff members for their devotion, diligence and commendable performance.

On behalf of the Board

SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ
Karachi: 22 February 2017 President & Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in Regulation No. 35 of Chapter XI
of listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed
company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Bank has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1.

10.

16

The Bank encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing minority interests on
its board of directors. At present the board includes:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Tariq lkram
Mr. Sohail Hasan

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Ali S. Habib
Mr. Anjum Z. Igbal
Mr. Firasat Ali

Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib
Mr. Mohomed Bashir

Mr. Muhammad H. Habib
President and Chief Executive Officer Mr. Sirajuddin Aziz

The independent directors meets the criteria of independence under clause i (b) of the CCG.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this Bank.

All the resident directors of the Bank are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking
company, a DFl or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

One casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year and was duly filled up by the director within stipulated time.

The Bank has developed a“Code of Conduct”and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout
the Bank along with its supporting policies and procedure.

The Bank has placed a mechanism for an annual evaluation of Board's own performance.

The board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Bank. A complete
record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment and
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), other executives
and non-executive directors, have been taken by the board / shareholders.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and the board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices
of the board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The

minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Bank is compliant with the requirement of directors training program provided in code.
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22.

23.

24

25.

. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their

remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.

The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully describes the
salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Bank were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the board.

The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Bank other than that disclosed in the pattern of
shareholding.

The Bank has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

The board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises three members, all of whom are non-executive directors and the
chairman of the committee is an independent director.

The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results of the
Bank and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the committee have been formed and advised to the committee
for compliance.

The board has formed a Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. It comprises three members including an independent director.
The board has set up an effective internal audit function.

The statutory auditors of the Bank have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control
review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the firm, their

spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Bank and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in

accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

The 'closed period; prior to the announcement of interim / final results, and business decisions, which may materially affect the
market price of company's securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock exchange.

Material / price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through stock exchange.

The Bank has developed a register in respect of the personnel who have access to inside information. However, the management
is in the process of updating / aligning the register in line with the format prescribed by the SECP.

We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

On behalf of the Board

SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ

Karachi: 22 February 2017 President & Chief Executive Officer
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AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance
(“the Code") prepared by the Board of Directors of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (“the Bank”) for the year ended 31 December
2016 to comply with the requirements of Listing Rule book number 5.19 of the Pakistan Stock Exchange where the Bank is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Our responsibility is to review, to the
extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Bank's
compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements
of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Bank
to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of
Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Bank's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before
the Board of Directors for their review and approval of related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out
on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price
and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken
atarm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Bank's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable to
the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2016.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: 22 February 2017 Mazhar Saleem
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

This statement is being issued in compliance with the Guidelines on Internal Controls, issued by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BSD
Circular No. 7 dated May 27, 2004.

MANAGEMENT EVALUATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The management of Habib Metropolitan Bank (HabibMetro) remains responsible for implementing strategies and policies as approved
by the Board of Directors; maintaining an effective organization structure; instituting appropriate control procedures and monitoring
the adequacy/effectiveness of internal control systems. The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for ensuring that an adequate
and effective System of Internal Controls is established and efforts are made to implement sound control procedures and to maintain
a suitable control environment.

The Bank's fundamental policy is to embed controls in each process and make controls an important part of all business activities.
Each member of the staff is also responsible for ensuring that the Bank always operates in a controlled manner and inordinate risks
are not taken in any activity.

The Bank's organization structure and lines of authority are well-defined and processes throughout the Bank are largely governed
by policies and procedures approved by the Board. However, their review and updating to meet requlatory requirements & changing
practices remains a continued activity to achieve effective control objectives. The Bank's Operation Manual in accordance with best
practices applicable to our environment for key areas is set in place to improve the quality of service, training and product knowledge
across the organization. The Bank's accounting policies, practices and methodologies for various estimates have been reviewed by
external auditors and there have been no material disputes thereon.

Effectiveness of Internal Controls is independently reviewed on a regular basis by Internal Audit and Board Audit Committee is
updated accordingly. The Internal Audit framework incorporates extensive risk-based auditing throughout the year. Views expressed
by External Auditors and Regulatory Inspectors are also provided utmost importance and corrective actions on all audit / inspection
observations are followed-up rigorously. For operating effectiveness, compliance to laws and regulations and reliability of financial
reporting, in addition to other control functions, an Internal Control Unit has also been established within Risk Management Division.
The Unit provides an ongoing mechanism for establishing and maintaining a sound system and apt control environment duly backed
by independent internal audit regime. This would give reasonable assurance to achieve the internal control objectives for continuously
evaluating the nature and extent of the significant risks and to manage them effectively and efficiently.

SBP Internal Control Guidelines require the Bank's management to evaluate the effectiveness of overall set of internal controls
including financial reporting controls which are required to be independently reviewed by the external auditors. As part of this
exercise, the Bank has formulated a comprehensive Internal Control process and a stage wise roadmap for its implementation across
the bank considering an internationally accepted COSO Internal Control - Integrated Framework, as envisaged under the SBP Internal
Control Guidelines for Financial Reporting (ICFR). In accordance with this process, the Bank has completed all stages of internal control
as defined under COSO framework and instituted initiatives for remediation of the identified gaps and also affected a system for
testing effectiveness of all significant controls on ongoing basis. It is pertinent to note that although effective remediation of the
gaps identified will further strengthen the Bank's existing control environment, management is confident that these gaps do not
carry a significant bearing on the Bank's existing operations and related controls. Further, to strengthen the control culture the bank
undertakes awareness sessions for process owners bank wide on regular basis.
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Internal Controls always manage rather than eliminate possibility of process failures to achieve their objectives and hence, can only
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatements or oss.

On an overall basis, Internal Controls at HabibMetro were operating with reasonable adequacy throughout the year ended December
31,2016 and reflect improvement from last year in organization structure; effective adherence with lines of authority; automation
and effectiveness of processes with enhanced testing of controls.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REMARKS ON THE MANAGEMENT’S
EVALUATION OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

Keeping in view the feedback received by the Board of Directors from the Audit Committee; reports submitted as to the business
policies and major risks related decision taken by the Management, the Board of Directors endorses Management'’s evaluation of
internal control.

On behalf of the Board

SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ
Karachi: 22 February 2017 President & Chief Executive Officer
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Shari'ah Board’s Report
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful

By the Grace of Allah Almighty, the year under review was the first full year for the Shariah Board. During the year, the Shari'ah Board
(SB) held 09 meetings to review various products, concepts, transactions, processes and their Shari'ah Compliance, referred by the
Resident Shariah Board Member (RSBM).

Further, while the Board of Directors and Executive Management are solely responsible to ensure that the operations of HabibMetro
Sirat are conducted in a manner that complies with Shari'ah principles at all times, the SB required to submit a report on the overall
Shari'ah compliance environment of HabibMetro Sirat.

Thus, to form our opinion as expressed in this report, the Shari'ah Compliance Department of the Bank carried out reviews, on test
check basis, of each class of transactions, the relevant documentation and process flows. Further, the SB has also reviewed the

periodical reports of RSBM and internal Shari'ah Audit. Based on above, SB is of the view that:

HabibMetro Sirat has complied with Shari'ah rules and principles in the light of fatawa, rulings and guidelines issued by its
Shari'ah Board.

ii. HabibMetro Sirat has complied with directives, regulations, instructions and guidelines related to Shari'ah compliance issued
by SBP in accordance with the rulings of SBP's Shari‘ah Board.

iii. HabibMetro Sirat has a comprehensive mechanism in place to ensure Shari'ah compliance in their overall operations.

iv. HabibMetro Sirat has a well-defined system in place sound enough to ensure that any earnings realized from sources or by
means prohibited by Shari'ah have been credited to charity account and are being properly utilized.

v.  HabibMetro Sirat has complied with the SBP instructions on profit & loss distribution and pool management.
vi. The management has arranged number of trainings for the staff of Islamic Banking as well as for the staff of conventional
branches. Also, Shari'ah Board has conducted specific product wise trainings for the staff members of IBBs. The SB has also

conducted orientation session for senior management of the Bank during the year.

vii. The level of awareness, capacity and sensitization of the staff, management and the BOD in appreciating the importance of
Shari'ah compliance in the products and processes of the Bank, is quite satisfactory.

viii. The SB has been provided adequate resources enabling it to discharge its duties effectively.

In order to further enhance the scope of Islamic banking and facilitation in respect of Islamic Banking Windows, the SB recommends
the following:

The SB highly appreciates the efforts of the management to introduce employee facilities / benefits of house building finance
and car finance through Shari'ah compliant modes of Diminishing Musharakah and ljarah. However, the SB recommends to offer
personal loan facility through Shari'ah compliant structure and provision of health insurance under Takaful arrangement.



ii.  Trained and dedicated staff should be appointed over the counters of Islamic Banking windows (IBWs) to properly facilitate the
Islamic banking customers in conventional branches.

iii.  Inrespect of Islamic Banking, the Bank should have experienced staff in the area of Credit to ensure that documentation, review
and securitization are all in conformity with Shari'ah Principles.

May Allah accept our efforts and grant us success in the field of Islamic Finance. We also pray to Allah Aimighty and seek his guidance
and blessings for further progress, development and prosperity of HabibMetro Sirat.

MUFTI MUHAMMAD ZUBAIR USMANI
Chairman Shari'ah Board

MUFTI ABDUL SATTAR LAGHARI MUFTI MUHAMMAD IBRAHIM ESSA
Resident Shari'ah Board Member Shari'ah Board Member

Karachi: 22 February 2017
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated statement of financial position of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (“the Bank") as at
31 December 2016 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income,
unconsolidated cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof (here-in-after referred to as the 'financial statements') for the year then ended, in which are incorporated the un-audited
certified returns from the branches except for twenty-five branches which have been audited by us and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Bank's Board of Directors to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present
the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962 (LVIl of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of any material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as,
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
and, after due verification, which in case of loans and advances covered more than sixty percent of the total loans and advances of
the Bank, we report that:

a) inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of
1984), and the returns referred to above received from the branches have been found adequate for the purposes of our audit;

b) inour opinion:

i) the unconsolidated statement of financial position and the unconsolidated profit and loss account together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVIl of 1962), and the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with the
accounting policies consistently applied except for the change in accounting policy as stated in note 5.1.1 of the accompanying
financial statements, with which we concur;

i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Bank's business; and

i) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the objects
of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank;

¢) inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement
of financial position, unconsolidated profit and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated
cash flow statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform
with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962 (LVIl of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view of the state of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2016, and its true balance of profit, its comprehensive income,
its cash flows and its changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) inour opinion Zakat deductible at source, under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), was deducted by the Bank
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Karachi: 22 February 2017 Mazhar Saleem
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital
Reserves
Unappropriated profit

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000

8 35,561,885 30,645,728
9 2,259,974 13,806,513
10 16,750,886 2,800,000
11 314,619,011 292,779,230
12 142,962,103 132,646,839
13 3,246,376 3,124,779
14 2,458,685 1,938,628
15 8,747,497 12,137,391
526,606,417 489,879,108
16 8,108,633 6,344,461
17 37,205,175 31,462,822
18 430,888,036 403,354,957
19 10,734,123 11,889,064
486,935,967 453,051,304
39,670,450 36,827,804
20 10,478,315 10,478,315
13,933,875 12,710,010
12,753,139 9,931,633
37,165,329 33,119,958
21 2,505,121 3,707,846
39,670,450 36,827,804
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The annexed notes 1 to 46 and annexures | &I form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB
Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ

President &

TARIQ IKR
Director

AM

MOHOMED BASHIR
Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed

Net mark-up / interest income

Provision against non-performing loans and advances
Provision for diminution in the value of investments
Bad debts written off directly

Net mark-up / interest income after provisions

Non mark-up / interest income
Fee, commission and brokerage income
Dividend income
Income from dealing in foreign currencies
Gain on sale / redemption of securities - net
Unrealised gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
classified as held-for-trading
Other income

Total non mark-up / interest income

Non mark-up / interest expenses
Administrative expenses
Other provisions / write offs / reversals
Other charges

Total non-mark-up / interest expenses

Extra ordinary / unusual items
Profit before taxation

Taxation - Current
— Prior years
— Deferred

Profit after taxation
Unappropriated profit brought forward

Profit Available for appropriation

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees)

The annexed notes 1 to 46 and annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB

SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ
Chairman President &
Chief Executive Officer

Note

24
25

26

27

28
29
30

32

2016

2015

Rupees in ‘000

33,172,071

(21,409,855)

11,762,216

811,651
32,964

36,850,013

(22,466,055)

14,383,958

(844,615)

10,917,601

2,116,885
109,077

3,030,481

121,382
1,035,989
4,324,944

323,470

(2,225,962)

12,157,996

8,836,266

19,753,867

2,829,879

147918
1,083,300
4778513

342,130

9,359,596
(172,048)
232,572

9,181,740

21,339,736

(9,420,120)

10,333,747

10,333,747

8,445,940
14,989
339,896

(3,517,238
(581,308
(115,877

(8,800,825)

12,538911

12,538911

)
)
)
)

(4,214,423

6,119,324

9,931,633

16,050,957

5.84

TARIQ IKRAM

(4963,851)
(476,000)
556,873

(4,882,978)

7,655,933

8,543,116

16,199,049

7.31

MOHOMED BASHIR
Director
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note

Profit after taxation for the year

Other comprehensive income

ltems that are not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 358

Related deferred tax (charge) / reversal 14.1

Comprehensive income transferred to equity

[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods and not to be reflected in equity:

Deficit arising on revaluation of available for sale securities

Related deferred tax reversal 14.1

Total comprehensive income

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
6,119,324 7,655,933

30,289 (32,288)
(10,601) 11,301
19,688 (20,987)
6,139,012 7,634,946
(2,088,312) (944,529)
730,909 101,927
(1,357,403) (842,602)
4,781,609 6,792,344

The annexed notes 1 to 46 and annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ TARIQ IKRAM

Chairman President &
Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 10,333,747 12,538,911
Less: Dividend income (121,382) (147918)
10,212,365 12,390,993
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization (including depreciation
on non-banking assets) 28 727,574 565,932
Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net 12.5 811,651 2,116,885
Provision against off-balance sheet obligation 19.1 - 14,989
Provision against other assets - net 15.2 (173,750) -
Provision for diminution in the value of investments - net 11.3 32,964 109,077
Net gain on sale of non-banking assets 27.2 (583) -
Net gain on sale of fixed assets 27 (20,959) (59,186)
1,376,897 2,747 697
11,589,262 15,138,690
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions (13,950,886) 608,776
Advances (11,126,915) (13,078)
Other assets (excluding current taxation and
dividend receivable) 3,991,955 85,586
(21,085,846) 681,284
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable 1,764,172 1,142,979
Borrowings 5,245,299 7,061,268
Deposits and other accounts 27,533,079 83,331,497
Other liabilities (excluding current taxation) (416,368) (1,398,871)
_ 34126182 _ 90136873
24,629,598 105,956,847
Income tax paid (4,910,215) (4,302,168)
Net cash generated from operating activities 19,719,383 101,654,679
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net investments in available-for-sale securities (28,253,655) (60,146,399)
Net investments in held-to-maturity securities 4,635,098 (11,917,775)
Net investments in subsidiary (342,500) (7,500)
Dividend received 119,276 150,266
Investments in operating fixed and intangibles assets (1,106,740) (668,601)
Proceeds from sale of non-banking assets 115,000 -
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 83,436 61,664
Net cash used in investing activities (24,750,085) (72,528,345)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (2,096,734) (4,702,253)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,096,734) (4,702,253)
(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,127,436) 24,424,081
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 44,059,154 19,635,073
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33 36,931,718 44,059,154

The annexed notes 1 to 46 and annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ TARIQ IKRAM MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman President & Director Director
Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Reserves
. Un-
Share Share Statutory Special Revenue B
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve appg?gfril?ted Total
Rupees in ‘000

Balance as at 1 January 2015 10478315 2,550,985 6,887,477 240,361 1,500,000 8543,116 30,200,254
Changes in equity for the year

ended 31 December 2015
Total comprehensive income for

the year ended 31 December

2015 - profit for the year - - - - - 7,655,933 7,655,933
Other comprehensive income

- net of tax - - - - - (20,987) (20,987)
Transactions with owners,

recorded directly in equity
Cash dividend (Rs. 2.50 per share)

for the year ended 31

December 2014 - - - - - (2619,579)  (2,619,579)
Interim cash dividend (Rs. 2.00 per share)

for the year ended 31

December 2015 - - - - - (2,095,663) (2,095,663)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - 1,531,187 - - (1,531,187 -
Balance as at 31 December 2015 10478315 2,550,985 8,418,004 240,361 1,500,000 9,931,633 33,119,958
Changes in equity for the

year ended 31 December

2016
Total comprehensive income for

the year ended 31 December

2016 - profit for the year - - - - - 6,119,324 6,119,324
Other comprehensive income

- net of tax - - - - - 19,688 19,688
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of

non-banking assets - net of tax - - - - - 2,022 2,022
Transactions with owners,

recorded directly in equity
Final cash dividend (Rs. 2.00 per

share) for the year ended 31

December 2015 - - - - - (2,095,663)  (2,095,663)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - 1,223,865 - - (1,223,865) -
Balance as at 31 December 2016 10,478,315 2,550,985 9,642,529 240,361 1,500,000 12,753,139 37,165,329

The annexed notes 1 to 46 and annexures | & Il form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ TARIQ IKRAM MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman President & Director Director
Chief Executive Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on 3 August 1992, as a public limited company, under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is engaged in commercial banking and related services. Its shares are listed on Pakistan
Stock Exchange. The Bank operates 273 (2015: 237) branches, including 25 (2015: 20) Islamic banking branches, and 34 (2015:
39) sub branches in Pakistan. The Bank is a subsidiary of Habib Bank AG Zurich - Switzerland (the holding company with 51%
shares in the Bank) which is incorporated in Switzerland.

The registered office of the Bank is situated at Spencer's Building, I. . Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 These unconsolidated financial statements represent separate financial statements of the Bank. The consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiary companies are being separately issued.

2.2 Inaccordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes,
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade related modes
of financing include purchase of goods by the Bank from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate
mark-up in price on a deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected
in these unconsolidated financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the
appropriate portion of mark-up thereon.

2.3 Key financial figures of the Islamic Banking branches are disclosed in note 44 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
2.4 Basis of measurement
Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
investments and non-banking assets are stated at market value and derivative financial instruments are carried at fair
value as disclosed in notes 5.4, 5.7 and 5.1.1 respectively.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962
and the directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case the requirements differ, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by the
SBP shall prevail.

3.2 The SBP vide BSD Circular letter No. 10, dated 26 August 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" and IAS 40 "Investment Property" for banking
companies till further instructions. Further, according to a notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) through S.R.0. No. 411(1)/2008 dated 28 April 2008, IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" has not
been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the
preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in
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accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP. Further, segment information has been disclosed
in accordance with SBP's prescribed format as per BSD Circular No. 04 dated 17 February 2006.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITY

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the application of its accounting policies. The
estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgments were made by management in the application of accounting
policies are as follows:

i) Classification of investments

- Inclassifying investments as "held-for-trading’, the Bank has determined securities which are acquired with the
intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements and are to be sold within
90 days.

- Inclassifying investments as "held-to-maturity", the Bank follows the guidance provided in SBP circulars on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. In making this judgment,
the Bank evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

- Theinvestments which are not classified as held-for-trading or held-to-maturity are classified as "available-for-sale".
ii) Provision against non performing loans and advances and debt securities classified as investments

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio and debt securities classified as investments to assess amount of non-performing loans
and advances and debt securities and provision required there-against. While assessing this requirement various factors
including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the borrower and the forced sale value of the securities,
etc. as per the requirement of the Prudential Regulations are considered. For portfolio impairment provision on consumer
advances and small enterprise advances, the Bank follows the general provision requirement set out in Prudential
Regulations. In addition, the Bank also maintain a general provision against its loan portfolio discussed in note 5.5.

iii) Valuation and impairment of available for sale equity investments

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making
this judgment, the Bank evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In addition, impairment may
be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows.

iv) Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding deferred tax asset)

Non financial assets are subject to impairment review if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount
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vi)

vii)

of the asset and the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows from the asset discounted at a rate that
reflects market interest rates adjusted for risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an intangible or tangible
asset is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account and the
carrying value of the asset reduced by the amount of the loss. A reversal of an impairment loss on intangible assets is
recognised as it arises provided the increased carrying value does not exceed which it would have been had no impairment
loss been recognised.

Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Bank, the management looks, at the current income
tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for deferred taxes,
estimates of the Bank's future taxable profits are taken into account.

Fixed assets, depreciation and amortisation

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortisation method, the management uses method which reflects the pattern
in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviewed at each financial
year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the assets, the method would be changed to reflect the change in pattern. Such change is accounted for as change in
accounting estimates in accordance with International Accounting Standard - 8, "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors".

Defined benefits plan

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method, as fully
disclosed in note 35 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

viii) Compensated Absences

The bank uses actuarial valuation for the determination of its compensated absences liability. This method makes certain
assumptions, which may change, thereby effecting the profit and loss account of future period.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of these unconsolidated financial statement are consistent with those
of the previous financial years, except for the change in accounting policy as disclosed in note 5.1.1.

5.1.1 Change in accounting policy

Effective from 1 January 2016, the Bank has changed its accounting policy for recording of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims to comply with the requirements of the 'Regulations for Debt Property Swap'
(the regulations) issued by the SBP vide its BPRD Circular No. 1 of 2016, dated 1 January 2016. In line with the
guidance provided in the Regulations, the non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at
revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. These assets are revalued by professionally qualified valuers
with sufficient regularity to ensure that their net carrying value does not differ materially from their fair value. A
surplus arising on revaluation of property is credited to the 'surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets' account
and any deficit arising on revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal fees, transfer costs and
direct costs of acquiring title of the property is charged to profit and loss account. Previously, non-banking assets
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5.2

5.3

5.4

acquired in satisfaction of claims were carried at cost less impairment, if any. Had the accounting policy not been
changed, non-banking assets (included in Other Assets in the statement of financial position) would have been
lower by Rs 237,966 thousand while surplus on revaluation of assets would have been lower by Rs 154,678
thousand, unappropriated profit and deferred tax assets would have been higher by Rs 9,233 thousand and
Rs 83,288 thousand respectively. Furthermore, profit before tax would have been higher by Rs 17,315 thousand.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and
balances with other banks less overdrawn nostros and local bank accounts.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions

The Bank enters into transactions of borrowing (re-purchase) from and lending (reverse re-purchase) to financial institutions,
at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are recorded as under:

Sale under repurchase obligation

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be recognised
in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for investments and
counter party liability is included in borrowing from financial institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase
price is amortised as an expense over the term of the repo agreement.

Purchase under resale obligation

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repos) are not
recognised in the statement of financial position and instead amounts paid under these arrangements are included in
lendings to financial institutions. The difference between purchase and resale price is accrued as income over the term

of the agreement.

Other borrowings including borrowings from SBP are recorded at the proceeds received. Mark up on such borrowing is
charged to the profit and loss account on a time proportion basis.

Bai Muajjal

The securities sold under Bai Muajjal agreement are derecognised on the date of disposal. Receivable against such sale
is recognised at the agreed sale price. The difference between the sale price and the carrying value on the date of disposal
is taken to income on straight line basis.
Investments
5.4.1 Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment, if any.
5.4.2 Otherinvestments are classified as follows:

Held-for-trading

These are securities, which are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuation in market prices,

interest rate movements, dealers margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term
trading exists.
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Held-to-maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are held with the positive
intention and ability to hold till maturity.

Available-for-sale
These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories.

5.4.3 Investments (other than held-for-trading) include transaction costs associated with the investments. In case of
held-for-trading investments transaction costs are charged to profit and loss account.

In accordance with the requirements of the SBP, quoted securities, other than those classified as held-to-maturity
and investment in subsidiaries, are carried at market value. Investments classified as held-to-maturity are carried
at amortised cost whereas investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Unrealised surplus / deficit arising on the revaluation of the Bank's held-for-trading investment portfolio is taken
to the profit and loss account. Surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of quoted securities classified as available
for sale is kept in separate account shown in the statement of financial position below equity. Surplus / deficit
arising on these securities is taken to the profit and loss account when actually realised upon disposal or when
the investment is considered to be impaired.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Subsequent decrease in the carrying
value are charged to profit and loss account. Break-up value of equity securities is calculated with reference to
the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in
other unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Provision for diminution in the value of term finance and Sukuk certificates are made as per the criteria prescribed
under Prudential Regulation issued by the SBP.

Provision for impairment in the value of available for sale and held-to-maturity securities (other than term finance
and sukuk certificates) is made after considering objective evidence of impairment, if any, in their value (as a result
of one or more events that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments). A significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity investment below its cost is also considered an objective
evidence of impairment. Impairment losses are taken to profit and loss account.

All“regular way" purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Bank
commits the purchase or sell the asset. Reqular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of investments
that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

5.5 Advances (including net investment in finance lease and ijarah arrangements)
Loans and advances
Loans and advances and net investments in finance lease are stated net of provision for loan losses against non-performing
advances. Provision for loan losses is made in accordance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP and is charged

to the profit and loss account. The Bank also maintains general provision in addition to the requirements of the Prudential
Regulations on the basis of management's assessment of credit risk characteristics and general banking risk such as nature
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5.6

of credit, collateral type, industry sector and other relevant factors. Murabaha receivables are stated at gross amount
receivable less deferred income and provisions, if any.

Finance lease receivables

Leases, where the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee
are classified as finance lease. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease
payments including guaranteed residual value, if any. Finance lease receivables are included in advances to the customers.

ljarah

In accordance with the requirements of Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) No. 2 for the accounting and financial
reporting of “ljarah’, ljarah arrangements by the Islamic Banking branches are accounted for as 'Assets held under ljarah'
and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, residual value and impairment losses, if any. Accordingly assets
subject to ljarah have been reflected in note 12 to these unconsolidated financial statements under “Advances”. Rental
income on these ljarah is recognised in the Bank's profit and loss account on a time proportion basis, while depreciation
is calculated on ljarah assets on a straight line basis over the period of ljarah from the date of delivery of respective assets
to mustajir (lessee) up to the date of maturity / termination of ijarah agreement and is charged to the profit and loss
account. The classification and provisioning of ljarah assets is done in line with the requirements laid down in the Prudential
Regulations and are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Diminishing Musharakah

In Diminishing Musharakah based financing, the Bank enters into a Musharakah based on shirkat-ul-milk for financing
an agreed share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or machinery) with its customers and enters into periodic profit
payment agreement for the utilization of the Bank's Mushariki share by the customer. Income from these transactions
are recorded on an accrual basis.

Istisna

In Istisna financing, the Bank places an order to purchase some specific goods / commodities from its customers to be
delivered to the Bank within an agreed time. The goods are then sold and the amount financed is paid back to the Bank.

Al-Bai

The product is based on the Islamic Mode “Musawamah” Musawamah is a general kind of sale in which price of the
commodity to be traded is agreed between seller and the buyer without any reference to the cost incurred and profit
charged by the former.

Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery.

Fixed assets

Tangible - owned (operating)

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, except for freehold
land which are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset at the rates specified in note
13.2. Depreciation on additions during the year is calculated from the date of addition. In case of disposals during the
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5.7

5.8

5.9

year, the depreciation is charged up till the date of disposal. Depreciation on ijarah assets referred to in note 44.4 is
calculated on a straight line basis over the period of ljarah from the date of delivery of respective assets to the mustajir
(lessee) up to the date of maturity / termination of ijarah agreed.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognised in the profit and loss account
in the year the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and changes, if any, are treated as change in
accounting estimates, at each Statement of Financial Position date.

Intangible

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. The cost of intangible assets are amortised
from the month when the assets are available for intended use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the
intangible asset is amortised over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the
Bank. The useful life and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each Statement of Financial
Position date.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the date on which the derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. All derivative financial instruments are carried as asset when fair value
is positive and liability when fair value is negative. Any change in the value of derivative financial instruments is taken to
the profit and loss account.

Provisions

Provision against identified non-funded losses is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty exists for the Bank
to settle the obligation. The loss is charged to the profit and loss account net of expected recovery and is classified under
other liabilities.

Other provisions are recognised when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date and are adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Bank classifies a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
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A non-current asset held for sale is carried at the lower of its carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Impairment
losses are recongnised through the profit and loss account for any initial or subsequent write down of the non-current
asset to fair value less costs to sell. Subsequent gains in fair value less costs to sell are recognised to the extent they do
not exceed the cumulative impairment losses previously recorded. A non-current asset is not depreciated while classified
as held for sale.

5.10 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account
except to the extent that it relates to the items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking into
consideration available tax credits and rebates. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments where considered
necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalised during the year

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rate that are expected to be applied on the temporary differences when they reverse, based
on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Bank also recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of assets and actuarial gain / losses
recognised in 'Other Comprehensive Income’, which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

5.11 Employees' benefits
5.11.1 Retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan
The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. Retirement benefits are
payable to the members of the scheme on the completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under the
scheme. Contribution is made in accordance with the actuarial recommendation. The actuarial valuation is carried
out annually as at the statement of financial position date using "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method".
All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in "Other Comprehensive Income" as they occur.
Past service cost resulting from changes to defined benefit plan is recognised in the profit and loss accounts.

Defined contribution plan

The Bank operates a recognised provident fund scheme for all its reqular employees, which is administered by the
Board of Trustees. Contributions are made by the Bank and its employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary.
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5.11.2 Compensated absences

A provision is made for estimated liability for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by the employees against
unavailed leaves, as per term of service contract, up to the statement of financial position date.

The actuarial valuation under the 'Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method' has been carried out by the Bank
for the determination of the liability for compensated absences. Liability so determined is fully recognised by
the Bank.

5.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be reliably
measured. These are recognised as follows:

a)

b)

c)

Advances and investments

Mark-up / return on regular loans / advances and debt securities investments is recognised on a time proportion
basis that take into account the effective yield on the asset. Where debt securities are purchased at premium or
discount, the same is amortised through the profit and loss account using the effective interest rate method.
Interest or mark-up recoverable on classified loans and advances and investments is recognised on receipt basis.
Interest / return / mark-up on classified rescheduled / restructured loans and advances and investments is recognised
as permitted by the regulations of the SBP.

Dividend income is recognised when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

Gains and losses on sale of investments are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Income on bills discounted are recognised over the period of the bill.

Lease financing / ljarah contracts

Financing method is used in accounting for income from lease financing. Under this method, the unearned lease
income (excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the cost of leased assets) is
deferred and taken to income over the term of the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return

on the outstanding net investment in lease. Unrealised income on classified leases is recognised on receipt basis.

Rental income on ijarah executed by the Islamic Banking branches are accounted for under IFAS 2 (refer note 5.5)
is recognised in the profit and loss account on a time proportion basis.

Gains / losses on termination of lease contracts and other lease income are recognised when realised.
Fees, commission and brokerage

Fees, commission and brokerage except income from letters of guarantee is accounted for on receipt basis. Income
from letter of guarantee is recognised on an accrual basis over the period of the guarantee.
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5.13 Off setting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
5.14 Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are translated into local currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the
statement of financial position date. Forward exchange contracts are revalued using forward exchange rates applicable
to their respective remaining maturities. Exchange gains or losses are included in income currently.
Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts disclosed in these financial statements are translated
at contracted rates. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign
currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the statement of financial position date.
5.15 Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing product or services (business segment),
or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Bank's primary format of reporting is based on
the following business segments.
Business segments
a) Trading and sales
This segment undertakes the Bank's treasury, money market and capital market activities.

b) Retail banking

Retail banking provides services to small borrowers i.e. consumers, small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and
borrowers’ agriculture sector. It includes loans, deposits and other transactions with retail customers.

c¢) Commercial banking

This includes loans, deposits and other transactions with corporate customers and SME customers other than those
included in retail banking.

Geographical segments
The Bank conducts all its operations in Pakistan.
5.16 Dividend distribution and appropriations
Bonus and cash dividend and other appropriations (except for the appropriations required by law), declared / approved
subsequent to statement of financial position date are considered as non-adjusting events and are not recorded in

unconsolidated financial statements of the current year. These are recognised in the period in which these are
declared / approved.
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5.17 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

5.18 Impairment of assets (other than loans and advances and investments)

At each statement of financial position date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of its assets (other than deferred tax
asset) to determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of relevant asset is estimated. Recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price
and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the assets is reduced to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.

Details of the basis of determination of impairment against loans and advances and investments have been discussed
in their respective notes.

5.19 Financial instruments

Allfinancial assets and liabilities are recognised at the time when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the Bank loses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities is taken to profit and loss account. Financial assets carried on the statement of financial position include cash
and bank balances, lendings to financial institutions, investments, advances and certain receivables. Financial liabilities
include borrowings, deposits, bills payable and other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted for significant
financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy notes associated with them.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Bank's functional currency. Except
as indicated, financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded to nearest thousand.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of Approved Accounting Standards will be effective for accounting
periods on or after 1 January 2017:

- Amendments toIAS 12 Income Taxes are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The amendment
clarify that the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset. The amendments further clarify that when calculating
deferred tax asset in respect of insufficient taxable temporary differences, the future taxable profit excludes tax deductions
resulting from the reversal of those deductible temporary differences. The amendments are not likely to have an impact
on unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank.
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- Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' are part of IASB's broader disclosure initiative and are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments require disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and
non - cash changes.

- Amendments to IFRS 2 Share based Payment clarify the accounting for certain types or arrangements and are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas (a) measurement
of cash - settled share - based payments; (b) classification of share - based payments settled net of tax withholdings; and
(c) accounting for a modification of a share - based payment from cash - settled to equity - settled. The new requirements
could affect the classification and / or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of
expense recognised for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Bank's
unconsolidated financial statements.

- Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when and only
when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an impact
on the Bank's unconsolidated financial statements.

- Annual Improvements 2014-2016 cycles (amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017). The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following standards:

- Amendments to IFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017) clarify that the requirements of IFRS 12 apply to an entity's interests that are classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5 - 'Non - current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

- Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organisation and other similar entities may elect to measure
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture
separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to non - investment
entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the
investment enlily associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each
investment entity associate or joint venture.

- IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment
or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the
advance foreign currency is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognised. The date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
orincome (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognised.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date or the transaction for each payment
or receipt or advance consideration. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Bank's unconsolidated
financial statements.

The Bank expects that the above mentioned improvements will not have a material impact on the Bank's unconsolidated
financial statements.
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Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000

CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

In hand
Local currency 6,182,215 4,957,548
Foreign currencies 1,521,597 1,639,651
7,703,812 6,597,199
With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current accounts 8.1 16,494,671 12,639,136
Foreign currency current account 8.2 68,118 113,817
Foreign currency deposit accounts
- cash reserve account 8.3 2,541,535 2,668,068
- special cash reserve account 84 7,384,550 7,635,515
26,488,874 23,056,536
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current accounts 1,353,485 978,717
National Prize Bonds 15,714 13,276
35,561,885 30,645,728

8.1 These accounts are maintained to comply with the statutory cash reserve requirements and include Rs. 2,036,491 thousand
(2015:Rs. 3,022,097 thousand) in respect of the Islamic Banking branches of the Bank.

8.2 This represents US Dollar collection / settlement account with SBP.

8.3 This represents account maintained with the SBP to comply with the Cash Reserve requirement against foreign currencies
deposits and includes amount of Rs. 135,769 thousand (2015: Rs. 206,654 thousand) in respect of the Islamic Banking
branches of the Bank.

8.4 This represents account maintained with the SBP to comply with the Special Cash Reserve requirement against foreign
currencies deposits. The return on this account is declared by the SBP on a monthly basis and, as at 31 December 2016,
carries mark-up at the rate of 0.00% (2015: 0.00%) per annum and includes amount of Rs. 167,253 thousand (2015:
Rs. 251,274 thousand) in respect of the Islamic Banking branches of the Bank.

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan
On current accounts 181,268 177,508
On deposit accounts 9.1 44,415 10,480,666
225,683 10,658,174
Outside Pakistan
On current accounts 9.2 2,034,291 3,148,339
2,259,974 13,806,513

9.1 These carry mark-up rates of 3.75% (2015: 4.00% to 7:00%) per annum.

9.2 These include balances in current accounts of Rs. 292,215 thousand (2015: Rs. 122,080 thousand) with branches of the
holding company.



10. LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in'000

Call money lendings 10.2 2,500,000 2,800,000
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 10.3 637,421 -
Bai Muajjal receivable from State Bank of Pakistan 104 5,113,465 -
Islamic Placement - Musharakah 10.5 8,500,000 -
16,750,886 2,800,000
10.1 Particulars of lendings
In local currency 16,750,886 2,300,000

10.2 This carry mark-up rate of 6.65% (2015: 6.25% to 7.25%) per annum, with maturity upto 3 March 2017 (2015: 13 January
2016).

10.3 Securities held as collateral against lending to financial institutions (Reverse repo)

Note 2016 2015
Further Further
Hglaity given as Total Hggfy given as Total
collateral collateral

Rupees in'000

Market treasury bills  10.3.2 638,315 - 638,315 - - -

10.3.1 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 5.99% to 6.04% (2015: Nil) per annum, with maturity upto 1 February 2017
(2015: Nil).

10.3.2 Market value of securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions is Rs. 638,822 thousands
(2015: Nil).

10.4 This carries profit / return of 5.98% per annum with maturity upto 10 February 2017.

10.5 These carry profit / return ranging from 4.50% to 5.25% per annum with maturity upto 6 March 2017.
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11. INVESTMENTS
11.1 Investments by types

Available-for-sale securities

Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Ordinary shares of listed
companies

Ordinary shares of unlisted
companies

Listed term finance
certificates

Unlisted term finance
certificates

Sukuk certificates and bonds

Open end mutual funds

Close end mutual funds

Held-to-maturity securities

Pakistan investment bonds

Other federal govt. securities-
Bai Muajjal

Certificates of investments

Subsidiaries

Habib Metropolitan Financial

Services Limited - 29,999,997

(2015:29,999,997) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each

Habib Metropolitan Modaraba
Management Company

(Private) Limited- 34,999,998
(2015:749,998) ordinary shares

of Rs. 10/- each

Investments at cost

Provision for diminution in the
value of investments

Investments - net of provisions
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation

of available-for-sale
securities - net

Investments after
revaluation of available-
for-sale securities

Note

115
11.6

11.9

1.3

212

2016 2015
Held by Given as Held by Given as
Bank collateral Total Bank collateral Total
Rupees in'000
158,277,735 12,042,862 170,320,597 72,360,324 3,558,874  75919,198
83,538,877 - 83,538,877 152,462,898 2,054,088 154,516,986
1,572,398 - 1,572,398 1,062,338 - 1,062,338
106,991 - 106,991 106,991 - 106,991
2,088,703 - 2,088,703 1,938,933 - 1,938,933
314,828 - 314,828 440,305 - 440,305
18,542,294 - 18,542,294 12,626,088 - 12,626,088
3,908,757 - 3,908,757 5,532,227 - 5,532,227
419,685 - 419,685 416,409 - 416,409
268,770,268 12,042,862 280,813,130 246,946,513 5612962  252,559/475
27,642,036 - 27,642,036 19,532,493 - 19,532,493
_ - - 11,644,641 - 11,644,641
2,200,000 - 2,200,000 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
29,842,036 - 29,842,036 34,477,134 - 34,477,134
300,000 - 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
350,000 - 350,000 7,500 - 7,500
650,000 - 650,000 307,500 - 307,500
299,262,304 12,042,862 311,305,166 281,731,147 5,612,962  287,344.109
(302,221) - (302,221) (269,257) - (269,257)
298,960,083 12,042,862 311,002,945 281,461,890 5,612,962 287,074,852
3,622,581 (6,515) 3,616,066 5,708,836 (4,458) 5,704,378
302,582,664 12,036,347 314,619,011 287,170,726 5,608,504 292,779,230
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11.2 Investments by segments

Federal government securities
Market treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds
GOP jarah sukuk
Other federal government securities - Bai Muajjal

Fully paid up ordinary shares
Listed companies
Unlisted companies

Term finance certificates, sukuk certificates and bonds
Listed term finance certificates
Unlisted term finance certificates
Sukuk certificates / bonds

Mutual funds
Openend
Close end

Certificates of investments

Subsidiaries
Habib Metropolitan Financial Services Limited - 29,999,997
(2015: 29,999,997) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

Habib Metropolitan Modaraba Management
(Private) Limited - 34,999,998 (2015: 749,998)
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

Total investments at cost
Provision for diminution in the value of investments

Investments - net of provisions
Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale
securities — net

Investments after revaluation of available-for-sale securities

Note

212

2016

2015

Rupees in ‘000

170,320,597
111,180,913
17,384,845

298,886,355

1,572,398
106,991

75,919,198
174,049,479
11,130,788
11,644,641

272,744,106

1,679,389

1,062,338
106,991

2,088,703
314,828
1,157,449

1,169,329

3,560,980

1,938,933
440,305
1,495,300

3,908,757
419,685

3,874,538

4,328,442

2,200,000

300,000

350,000

311,305,166

(302,221)

311,002,945

3,616,066

314,619,011

5532227
416,409

5,948,636

3,300,000

300,000

7,500

287,344,109

(269,257)

287,074,852

5,704,378

292,779,230
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2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ————

11.3 Particulars of provision for diminution

in the value of investments

Opening balance 269,257 160,180
Charge for the year 45,156 118,089
Reversal for the year (12,192) (9012)
Net charge for the year 32,964 109,077
Closing balance 302,221 269,257

11.3.1 Provision for diminution in

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

respect of type and segment
Available-for-sale securities

Fully paid-up ordinary shares

Listed companies 83,710 82,502

Unlisted companies 78,029 75,487
Term finance certificates, sukuk certificates and bonds

Listed term finance certificates 82,558 41279

Unlisted term finance certificates 28,840 28,840

Sukuk certificates / bonds 19,075 31,267

Mutual funds
Close end 10,009 9,882

302,221 269,257

Information relating to investments in federal government securities, ordinary shares of listed and unlisted companies,
listed and unlisted term finance certificates, sukuk certificates / bonds and open and close end mutual funds required
to be disclosed as part of the financial statements under the SBP's BSD Circular No. 4, dated 17 February 2006, is given
in Annexure "I" and is an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

These carry mark-up rates ranging from 5.87% to 6.28% (2015: 6.39% to 8.50%) per annum, with maturity upto 31 August
2017 (2015: 1 September 2016).

These carry mark-up rates ranging from 7.00% to 12.00% (2015: 8.75% to 12.00%) per annum and will mature up to 19 July
2022 (2015: 19 July 2022). These includes Rs. 132,000 thousand (2015: Rs. 132,000 thousand) pledged with the State Bank

of' Pakistan against TT / DD discounting facilities and demand loan facilities.

These carry mark-up rates ranging from 8.75% to 12.00% (2015: 11.50% to 12.00%) per annum and will mature up to
21 April 2026 (2015: 19 July 2022).

These carry mark-up rates ranging from 4.50% to 5.25% (2015: 6.40% to 7.50%) per annum and will mature up to 6 March
2017 (2015: 28 March 2016).

During the year, further investment of Rs. 342,500 thousand was made in wholly owned subsidiary. The subsidiary
company is in process of issuance of 34,250 thousand shares at Rs. 10 each.
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Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000

12. ADVANCES

Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc.

In Pakistan 125,075,780 115,482,866
Islamic financing and related assets (gross) 445 8,802,424 8,254,307
Net investment in finance lease

In Pakistan 122 568,510 655,517
Bills discounted and purchased

Payable in Pakistan 6,961,624 7,244,944

Payable outside Pakistan 18,484,814 18,438,791

25,446,438 25,683,735

Advances - gross 159,893,152 150,076,425
Provision against non-performing advances

- specific (16,796,939) (16,532,837)

- general (134,110) (896,749)

12.6 (16,931,049) (17,429,586)

Advances - net of provisions 129 142,962,103 132,646,839

12.1 Particulars of advances — gross

12.1.1 Inlocal currency 135,385,329 120,399,542
In foreign currencies 24,507,823 29,676,883
159,893,152 150,076,425

12.1.2 Short term (for upto one year) 137,879,279 133,240,123
Long term (for over one year) 22,013,873 16,836,302
159,893,152 150,076,425

12.2 Net investment in finance lease

2016 2015
Not later ~ Laterthan  Over Total Not later ~ Laterthan  Over  Total
thanone oneandless five thanone  oneand five
year thanfive  years year lessthan  years
years five years

Rupees in ‘000

Lease rentals receivable 172,202 329,535 - 501,737 172206 451,796 4937 628939
Residual value 31,404 87,904 - 119,308 28,719 78,493 476 107,638
Minimum lease payments 203,606 417,439 - 621,045 200,925 530,289 5413 736,627
Financial charges for future

periods (13,717) (38,818) - (52,535) (21912) (57,945)  (1,253) (81,110)
Present value of minimum

lease payments 189,889 378,621 - 568,510 179,013 472,344 4,160 655517
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12.3

12.4

12.5

Advances include Rs. 19,873,142 thousand (2015 : Rs.18,486,982 thousand) which have been placed under non-performing
status as detailed below:

2016 2015
Category of Classified  Provision  Provision Classified Provision Provision
classification advances  required held advances required held

Rupees in ‘000

Substandard 238,382 53,736 53,736 57,324 14,331 14,331
Doubtful 118,393 21,945 21,945 286,353 127,376 127,376
Loss 19,516,367 16,721,258 16,721,258 18,143,305 16,391,130 16,391,130

19,873,142 16,796,939 16,796,939 18,486,982 16,532,837 16,532,837

Consideration of forced sales value (FSV) for the purposes of provisioning against non-performing
loans

During the current year, the Bank availed additional forced value (FSV) benefit under BSD Circular No. T of 21 October
2011. This has resulted in reduction of provision against non-performing loans and advances by Rs. 2,179,431 thousand.
Further, as of 31 December 2016, had the benefit of FSVs (including those availed in previous year) not been taken by
the Bank, the specific provision against non-performing advances would have been higher by Rs. 2,838,225 thousand
(2015: Rs. 1,767,976 thousand) and accumulated profit would have been lower by Rs. 1,844,846 thousand (2015:
Rs. 1,149,184 thousand). This amount of Rs. 1,844,846 thousand is not available for distribution of cash and stock dividend
to the shareholders and bonus to employees.

Provision against non-performing advances
Note 2016 2015
Specific General Total Specific General Total

Rupees in ‘000

Opening balance 16,532,837 896,749 17,429,586 15,661,846 326696 15,988,542
Charge for the year 2,670,552 - 2,670,552 | | 2,657,575 570053 || 3,227,628
Reversals for the year (1,096,262) | (762,639)| | (1,858,901)| | (1,110,743) - (1,110,743)
Net charge / (reversal)

for the year 1,574,290 (762,639) 811,651 1,546,832 570,053 2,116,885
Amount written off 127 (1,310,188) - (1,310,188) (675,841) - (675,841)
Closing balance 12,6 16,796,939 134,110 16,931,049 16,532,837 896,749 17,429,586

12.5.1 General provision includes provision of Rs. 3,387 thousand (2015: Rs. 1,824 thousand) made against consumer
portfolio maintained at an amount equal to 1.5% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 5% of the unsecured
performing portfolio as required under the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP. Moreover, general provision
also includes provision of Rs. 16,814 thousand (2015: Rs. 28,806 thousand) made against small enterprises
maintained at an amount equal to 1% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 2% of the unsecured
performing portfolio.
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12.6 Particulars of provision against non-performing advances

2016 2015
Specific General Total Specific General Total
Rupees in ‘000
Against local currency exposure 16,518,304 134,110 16,652,414 16,153,105 896,749 17,049,854
Against foreign currencies exposure 278,635 - 278,635 379,732 - 379,732

16,796,939 134110 16,931,049 16,532,837 896,749 17,429,586

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ————
12.7 Particulars of write-offs

12.7.1 Against provisions 12.5 1,310,188 675,841
Directly charged to profit and loss account - -

1,310,188 675,841

12.7.2 Write offs of Rs. 500,000/- and above 1,310,188 675,841
Write offs of below Rs. 500,000/~ - -

1,310,188 675,841

12.8 Details of loan write offs of Rs. 500,000/- and above

In terms of sub-section (3) of section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the statement in respect of written-off
loans or any other financial relief of Rs. 500,000 or above allowed to the persons during the year ended 31 December 2016 is
enclosed as Annexure “Il"

12.9 These include Islamic financing and related assets amounting to Rs. 8,429,751 thousand (2015: Rs. 7,897,487 thousand).

12.10 Particulars of loans and advances to directors,
associated companies, subsidiaries etc.

Debts due by directors, executives or officers of the Bank
or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other persons

Balance at beginning of year 2,177,624 1,758,827
Loans granted during the year 987,986 912,573
Repayments during the year (538,454) (493,776)
Balance at end of year 2,627,156 2177624

Debts due by companies or firms in which the directors
of the Bank are interested as directors, partners or
in the case of private companies as members

Balance at beginning of year 3,967,805 1,840,385
Loans granted during the year 63,535,889 44,364,667
Repayments during the year (64,319,195) (42,237,247)
Balance at end of year 4] 3,184,499 3,967,805

48



HABIBMETRO

Debts due by subsidiary companies, controlled

firms and other related parties;

Balance at beginning of year
Loans granted during the year
Repayments during the year

Balance at end of year

13. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

13.1 Capital work-in-progress

Civil works
Equipments, etc.

13.2 Property and equipment

Leasehold land
Buildings / office premises

on freehold land

Buildings / office premises
on leasehold land

Furniture and fixtures, office
and computer equipments

Vehicles

Leasehold improvements

2016

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ———
10,937 281,577
- (281,577)
41 10,937 -
13.1 86,586 57,679
13.2 2,969,280 3,067,100
133 190,510 -
3,246,376 3,124,779
1311 41,172 40,076
45,414 17,603
86,586 57,679
13.1.1 This represents advance against renovation being carried out at various locations.
Cost Depreciation \E;;zlé
Charge for Rate of
As at Additions / Asat 31 As at the year/ Asat31 Asat31  depre-
1 January (deletions) / December 1January  (deletions)/ December  December ciation
2016 (transfer)* 2016 2016 (transfer)* 2016 2016 %
Rupees in ‘000
7,488 - 7,488 1,453 112 1,565 5923 149
638,933 - 352,783 203,216 23,607 155,631 197,152 4
(286,150)* (71,192)*
1,941,903 - 1,866,913 685,591 67,045 738,971 1,127,942 4
(74,990) (13,665)
1,831,356 540,215 2,351,993 1,160,384 316,993 1,458,867 893,126 15&25
(19,578) (18,510)
12,362 1,738 13,403 9,413 1,211 10,011 3,392 20
(697) (613)
1,987,467 300,197 2,280,292 1,292,352 253,567 1,538,547 741,745 20
(7,372) (7,372)
6,419,509 842,150 6,872,872 3,352,409 662,535 3,903,592 2,969,280
(102,637) (40,160)
(286,150)* (71,192)*

*This represents amount transferred to non-current assets held for sale refer note 15.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Cost Depreciation Book

Value
Rate of
As at - Asat 31 As at Charge for As at 31 As at 31
1 January /(\éj e(J\[Iett‘%Tst)/ December 1 January the year/ December  December 0€Pre-
2015 2015 2015 (deletions) 2015 2015 clation
-, %
Rupees in ‘000
Leasehold land 7488 - 7488 1,341 112 1,453 6035 149
Buildings / office premises
on freehold land 634313 4,620 638,933 180,198 23,018 203,216 435,717 4
Buildings / office premises
on leasehold land 1,922,797 19,106 1,941,903 616,290 69,301 685,591 1,256,312 4
Furniture and fixtures, office
and computer equipment 1,499,933 350,118 1,831,356 940,080 238,531 1,160,384 670972 15&25
(18,695) (18,227)
Vehicles 15,776 2,959 12,362 12,570 1,206 9413 2,949 20
6373) (4,363)
Leasehold improvements 1,746,352 241,115 1,987,467 1,058,588 233,764 1,292,352 695,115 20
2015 5,826,659 617918 6419509 2,809,067 565,932 3,352,409 3,067,100
(25,068) (22,590)

13.2.1 The cost of fully depreciated assets still in use is Rs. 1,838,729 thousand (2015: Rs. 1,486,446 thousand).

13.2.2 Carrying amount of idle properties held as at 31 December 2015 is Rs. 265,213 thousand.

13.2.3 Details of fixed assets disposed with original cost or book value in excess of Rs. 1,000 thousand or Rs. 250 thousand
respectively, whichever is lower are as follows:

Particulars Cost Book Sale Mode of disposal Particulars of purchaser
value proceed
— Rupeesin'000 ——
Century 21 Textile &

Premises 74,990 61,325 70,000 Negotiation Sportswear (Private) Limited
Leasehold improvement 5,070 - 12 Best available quotation Sadaat Al Soomro
Leasehold improvement 1,657 - 16 Best available quotation Bhai Jan Steel Merchant
Office equipment 328 277 322 Insurance claim EFU Insurance Company

82,045 61,602 70,350

13.3 Intangible assets

- Book
Cost Amortization Value
Rate of
As at . Asat 31 As at Charge for Asat31 Asat31
1 January /(\c? ed|lettli%r:155)/ December 1 January the year/ December  December dePre-
2016 2016 2016 (deletions) 2016 2016 C'i})"“
Rupees in ‘000 °
Computer software 27,875 235,683 263,558 27,875 45173 73,048 190,510 3333
o Book
Cost Amortization Value
Rate of
As at i, Asat 31 As at Charge for Asat 31 Asat 31
1 January ﬁfed‘gt'%?fs)/ December 1 January the year/ December  December 9€PIe-
2015 2015 2015 (deletions) 2015 2015 C‘a;)on
Rupees in ‘000
Computer software 27,875 - 27875 27875 - 27,875 - 3333

13.3.1 The cost of fully amortised intangible assets (computer software) still in use is Rs. 27,875 thousand (2015: Rs. 27,875 thousand).
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14.

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ————
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Deferred tax debits arising in respect of:
— Provision against diminution in the value of investments 105,777 94,240
— Provisions against non-performing advances (including
off-balance sheet obligations) 313 3,761,929 3,878,902
- Provision against other assets 140,090 200,900
— Deferred liability on defined benefit plan 70,249 80,850
4,078,045 4,254,892
Deferred tax credits arising due to:
— Surplus on revaluation of investment securities (1,265,623) (1,996,532)
= Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets (83,288) -
— Accelerated depreciation (270,449) (319,732)
(1,619,360) (2,316,264)
Net deferred tax asset 14.1 2,458,685 1,938,628
14.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax
Balance  Recognised  Recognised Balanceas Recognised  Recognised Balanceas
asat in profit in equity at 31 in profit in equity at 31
1 January & loss December &loss December
2015 account 2015 account 2016
Rupees in ‘000
Deferred debits
arising in respect of
Provision against
diminution in value of
investments 56,063 38,177 - 94,240 11,537 - 105,777
Provision against non-
performing advances
(including off-balance
sheet obligations) -
note 31.3 3,408,971 469,931 - 3,878,902 (116,973) - 3,761,929
Provision against other
assets 200,900 - - 200,900 (60,810) - 140,090
Deferred liability on
defined benefit plan 69,549 - 11,301 80,850 - (10,601) 70,249
3,735483 508,108 11,301 4,254,892 (166,246) (10,601) 4,078,045
Deferred credits
arising due to
Surplus on revaluation of
investment (2,098,459) - 101,927 (1996,532) - 730,909 (1,265,623)
Surplus on revaluation of
non-banking assets - - - - 1,086 (84,374) (83,288)
Accelerated depreciation (368497) 48,765 - (319,732) 49,283 - (270,449)
(2,466,956) 48,765 101,927 (2,316,264) 50,369 646,535 (1,619,360)
Net deferred tax asset 1,268,527 556,873 113,228 1,938,628 (115,877) 635,934 2,458,685




Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000

15. OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up / profit accrued in local currency 5,721,088 9,582,577
Income / mark-up / profit accrued in foreign currencies 31,064 31,788
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 502,428 480,444
Advance tax (payments less provisions) 104,456 -
Branch adjustment account 211 53
Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 769,626 624,018
Receivable from the SBP against encashment of
government securities 24,197 19,648
Stationery and stamps on hand 34,033 37,848
Dividend receivable 2,106 -
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 15.1 1,664,871 1,558,077
Non-current assets - held for sale 15.1 214,958 -
Others 78,709 376,938
9,147,747 12,711,391
Provision against other assets 15.2 (400,250) (574,000)
8,747,497 12,137,391

15.1 Non-current assets held for sale represents a property of Rs. 214,958 thousand (refer note 13.2) and non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims includes a property amounting to Rs. 401,764 thousand against which the Bank has
entered into an agreement to sell with a buyer on deferred payment basis. The possession of the properties has been
effected against receipt of earnest money, however, the title will be transferred upon receiving the entire sale consideration.

15.2 Provision held against other assets

Opening balance 574,000 574,000
Charge for the year 101,250 -
Reversal for the year (275,000) -
(173,750) -
Closing balance 400,250 574,000

16. BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 8,108,633 6,344,461

17. BORROWINGS

In Pakistan 34,515,931 28,515,900
Outside Pakistan 2,689,244 2,946,922

37,205,175 31,462,822

17.1 Particulars of borrowings in respect of currencies

In local currency 34,515,931 28,515,900
In foreign currencies 2,689,244 2,946,922
37,205,175 31,462,822
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Note 2016 2015
———— Rupeesin 000 ———
17.2 Details of borrowings

Secured

Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan

- under export refinance scheme 18,749,236 21,274,506
- under long term financing - export oriented projects - 19413

- under long term financing facility - locally
manufactured plant and machinery 3,616,963 1,423,239
17.2.1 22,366,199 22,717,158
Repurchase agreement borrowings (Repo) 1722 12,032,715 5,603,311
Due against bills re-discounting 1723 1,916,120 2,749,266
36,315,034 31,069,735

Unsecured

Overdrawn nostro accounts 773,124 197,656
Overdrawn local bank accounts 117,017 195,431
890,141 393,087
37,205,175 31,462,822

17.2.1  These carry mark-up rates ranging between 2.00% to 5.00% (2015: 5.00% to 10.10%) per annum which is payable
quarterly or upon maturity of loans, whichever is earlier.

17.2.2  These carry mark-up rates ranging between 5.75% to 5.90% (2015: 6.05% to 6.20%) per annum having maturity
upto 13 January 2017 (2015: 11 January 2016).

17.2.3  This represents the obligation to the corresponding Banks on the discounting of foreign documentary bills purchased

by the Bank on discount. The balance carries discount rate at 1.00% (2015: 1.00%) per annum having maturity upto
15 May 2017 (2015: 1 June 2016).
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19.
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Note

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Fixed deposits

Savings deposits

Current accounts (non-remunerative)
Others

Financial institutions

Remunerative deposits
Non-remunerative deposits

18.1 Particulars of deposits

In local currency
In foreign currencies

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency

Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies

Unearned commission and income on bills discounted

Accrued expenses

Current taxation (provision less payments)

Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 19.1
Unclaimed dividend

Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts

Workers' welfare fund 30.1
Excise duty payable

Locker deposits

Advance against diminishing musharakah

Advance rental for ijarah

Security deposits against leases / ijarah

Sundry creditors

Withholding tax / duties

Provision for compensated absences

Deferred liability on defined benefit plan

Others

19.1 Provision against off-balance sheet obligations
Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

2016

2015

Rupees in ‘000 ———

180,348,374
110,647,888
120,721,112

4,320,917

416,038,291

13,191,894
1,657,851

169,177,912
116,432,300
101,487,138

2,761,126

389,858,476

14,849,745

430,888,036

384,013,986
46,874,050

430,888,036

6,396,081
104,142
149,431
445,462
113,716

20,699
917,476
555,189

2,287
668,055
223
1,800
171,044
389,937
167,093
187,527
197,816
246,145

10,734,123

113,716

113,716

12,508,420
988,061

13,496,481

403,354,957

351,941,625
51,413,332

403,354,957

6,723,356
151,557
117,364
616,256
707,213
113,716

21,770
793,645
513,501

3,912
599,952
66,466
9,070
164,523
390,587
165,970

89,311
228,105
412,790

11,889,064

98,727
14,989

113,716
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20. SHARE CAPITAL

20.1 Authorised capital

2016 2015 2016 2015
(Number of shares) — Rupeesin ‘000 ———
1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 12,000,000 12,000,000

20.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

30,000,000 30,000,000 - issued for cash 300,000 300,000
92,500,000 92,500,000 - issued upon amalgamation 925,000 925,000
925,331,480 925,331,480 — issued as bonus shares 9,253,315 9,253,315
1,047,831,480 1,047,831,480 10,478,315 10,478,315

20.3 As of the date of statement of financial position, the holding company held 534,394 thousand (2015: 534,394 thousand)
ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each (51% holding).

21. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

Non-banking assets 21.1 154,678 -
Available for sale securities 21.2 2,350,443 3,707,846
2,505,121 3,707,846

21.1 Non-banking assets
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets as at January - -

Revaluation of non-banking assets during the year 258,227 -
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of disposal and

incremental depreciation during the year - net of deferred tax (13,170) -
Related deferred tax liability on disposal and incremental

depreciation during the year (7,091) -
Surplus on revaluation of non banking assets 237,966 -

Less: Related deferred tax liability on:
Revaluation as at January - -

Revaluation of non-banking assets during the year 90,379 -
Disposal and incremental depreciation during the year (7,091) -
Related deferred tax liability (83,288) -
154,678 -
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21.2 Available-for-sale securities

Federal government securities
Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

GOP jarah sukuk

Fully paid-up ordinary shares and mutual funds
Listed shares and mutual funds

Term finance certificates, sukuk certificates and bonds
Listed term finance certificates

Unlisted term finance certificates

Sukuk certificates / bonds

Related deferred tax liability - net

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
22.1 Direct credit substitutes

Bank guarantees of indebtness in favour of:
- Banking companies and other financial institutions

22.2 Transaction-related contingent liabilities

2016

8,896
2,476,838
387,580

712,299

18,123
1,342
10,988

3,616,066

(1,265,623)

2,350,443

872

Rupees in ‘000

2015

176,303
5,214,298
41,461

290,872

(6,813)
4,645
(16,388)

5,704,378

(1,996,532)

3,707,846

2,286

Includes performance bonds, bid bonds, advance payment guarantees and shipping guarantees favouring:

i) Government
ii)  Banking companies and other financial institutions
i) Others

22.3 Trade-related contingent liabilities
Letters of credit

Acceptances

22.4 Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts

Purchase

Sale

22.5 Commitments in respect of operating leases

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

56

21,036,923
499,127
16,022,300

37,558,350

61,829,418
11,400,550

76,832,902
66,117,312

41,488
43,205

84,693

17,163,286
436,358
10,077,952

27,677,596

63,545,499
12,554,226

80,770,251
73,381,353

20,757
18,890

__ 260
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23.

The Bank has entered into non-cancellable lease agreements with a Modaraba which has been duly approved by the
Religious Board as ljarah transactions. The monthly rental installments are spread over a period of 36 months. When a
lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty
is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

22.6 Commitments for the acquisition of operating fixed assets 61,774 57,582
22.7 Claims against bank not acknowledged as debt 23,071,676 1,348,358
22.8 Commitments in respect of forward lendings

The Bank has made commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business, but none of these commitments
are irrevocable and do not attract any penalty if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

22.9 Commitments in respect of syndicate financing 628,948 1,210,595
2210 Taxation

Income tax assessments of the Bank have been finalised upto the tax year 2016 (corresponding to the accounting year
ended 31 December 2015). Certain appeals are pending with the Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeal) and Appellate
Tribunal Revenue (ATIR). However, adequate provisions are being held by the Bank.

2211 Foreign Exchange repatriation case

While adjudicating Foreign Exchange repatriation cases of exporters, the Foreign Exchange Adjudicating Court of the
State Bank of Pakistan has also adjudicated penalty of Rs. 106,056 thousand, arbitrarily on the Bank. The Bank has filed
appeal before the Appellate Board and Constitutional Petition in the Honorable High Court of Sindh against the said
judgment. The Honorable High Court has granted relief to the Bank by way of interim order. Based on merits of the case,
the management is confident that this shall be decided in favor of the Bank and therefore no provision has been made
against the impugned penalty.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Bank deals in derivative financial instruments namely forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency swaps with
the principal view of hedging the risks arising from its trade business.

As per the Bank’s policy, these contracts are reported on their fair value at the statement of financial position date. The gains
and losses from revaluation of these contracts are included under “income from dealing in foreign currencies”. Unrealised gains
and losses on these contracts are recorded on the statement of financial position under “other assets and other liabilities”.

These products are offered to the Bank's customers to protect from unfavourable movements in foreign currencies. The Bank
hedges such exposures in the inter-bank foreign exchange market.

These positions are reviewed on a regular basis by the Bank’s Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO).
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24.

25.

26.

27.
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MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to:
Customers
Financial institutions

On investments in:
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities

On Bai-Muajjal with SBP

On deposits with financial institutions

On securities purchased under resale
agreements (reverse repo)

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits

Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Short term borrowings

Long term borrowings

GAIN / (LOSS) ON SALE / REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES - NET

Federal government securities
Market treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds
GOP ijarah sukuk

Fully paid-up ordinary shares
Listed companies

Mutual funds

OTHER INCOME

Rent on properties

Net gain on sale of fixed assets

Recovery of charges from customers

Incidental and service charges

Gain on sale of ijarah assets

Income from non-banking assets and gain
on sale of such assets

Bad debts recovered previously written off

Staff notice period and other recoveries

Note

27.1

27.2

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
8,734,055 9,565,369
106,606 121,503
8,840,661 9,686,872
20,039,416 23,843,992
3,319,129 2,815,895
23,358,545 26,659,887
272,366 -
439,341 276,436
261,158 226,818
33,172,071 36,850,013
17,626,445 16,652,269
1,428,679 3,006,435
2,227,713 2,677,616
127,018 129,735
21,409,855 22,466,055
29,588 277,186
3,395,821 3,187,060
(1,435) (16,282)
115,841 83,110
785,129 1,247,439
4,324,944 4,778,513
28,189 82,284
20,959 59,186
136,655 127,913
58,307 65,449
32 604
5,083 4,500
72,730 16
1,515 2,178
323,470 342,130
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27.1 Includes courier, telephone and swift charges etc. recovered from customers.

27.2 This includes gain on sale of a property amounting to Rs. 583 thousand (2015: Rs. Nil).

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ——

. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances etc. 4,683,723 4,256,657
Charge for defined benefit plan 35.5 149,094 123,765
Contribution to defined contribution plan 151,285 138,495

Non-executive directors' fees, allowances and
other expenses 7,800 8,775
Brokerage and commission 135,876 110,093
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 1,377,478 1,202,962
Legal and professional charges 121,039 114,107
Communication 249,898 238,526
Repairs and maintenance 265,950 281,015
Rentals of operating leases 33,376 23,124
Stationery and printing 174,250 152,731
Management fee 107,620 246,524
Advertisement and publicity 140,758 102,711
Donations 28.2 92,450 62,845
Auditors' remuneration 283 12,110 9,872
Depreciation and amortization 13&284 727,574 565,932
Security charges 380,539 299,372
Travelling and conveyance 134,754 151,967
Computer software maintenance 101,840 68,319
Subscriptions 140,542 113,750
Others 171,640 174,398
9,359,596 8,445,940

28.1 The administrative expenses includes Rs. 5,482 thousand (2015: Rs. 8,497 thousand) incurred for providing office premises
and support staff to the Chairman for carrying out his duties as the Chairman of the Board.

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ——

28.2 Donations paid in excess of Rs. 100,000 to a single party during the year are as follows:

DONEE

Habib Metropolitan Employees Endowment Fund 25,000 -
The Citizens Foundation 13,500 12,000
Habib University Foundation 12,000 12,000
Patients' Aid Foundation 10,030 10,300
Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation 5,000 3,000
Mohamedali Habib Welfare Trust 2,000 2,000
Masoomeen Hospital Trust 1,500 1,700
Zehra Homes 1,140 1,000
Fatimiyah Education Network 1,000 1,000
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DONEE

Aziz Tabba Foundation (Tabba Heart Institute)
Habib Education Trust

Alleviate Addiction Suffering Trust

Habib Public School

Habib Medical Trust

Habib Poor Fund

Al-Sayyeda Benevolent Trust

RehmatBai Habib Food & Clothing Trust
Abbas-e-Alamdar Hostel

RehmatBai Habib Widows & Orphans Trust
Pakistan Memon Educational & Welfare Society
Developments in Literacy

MBJ Health Association

Abdul Sattar Edhi Foundation

Memon Educational Board

Pakistan Memon Women Educational Society
Afzaal Memorial Thalassemia Foundation
Marie Adelaide Leprosy Centre

Karachi Down Syndrome Program

Poor Patients Aid Society Civil Hospital

The Aga Khan Hospital and Medical College Foundation
The Health Foundation

Vocational Welfare Society For Mentally Retarded (Markaz-e-Umeed)

Institute of Business Administration

Child Aid Association

Rotary Club of Karachi Continental
Al-Umeed Rehabilitation Association
Anjuman Behbood-e-Samat-e-Atfal
Bantva Memon Jamat

Bantva Memon Rahat Committee
Caravan of Life (Pak) Trust

Pak Medical and Welfare Trust

Dow 86 Children Critical Care Foundation
The Indus Hospital

Health Oriented Preventive Education
The Medical Aid Foundation

The Patients Behbud Society

Dhoraji Youth Services Foundation
Ahmed Abdullah Foundation (MA Ayesha Memorial Centre)
Kashmir Education Foundation

Family Educational Services Foundation
Dhoraji Association

Bantva Anjuman Himayat-e-Islam
Academy of Quaranic Studies

Memon Health and Education Foundation
Panah Trust

Habib Girls School Trust

2016

1,000
1,000
1,000
1,000
960
960
960
960
960
960
600
550
500
500
500
500
500
500
500
500
500
500
300
300
300
300
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
250
200
200
200
200
150
150
120

2015
Rupees in ‘000 ———

1,000
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29.

2016

DONEE

Professional Education Foundation -
Dar-Ul-Khushnud -
Publican Alumni Trust -
True Worth Foundation -
Special Children Educational Institute -

2015

Rupees in ‘000 ———

300
250
250
250
150

None of the directors, executives and their spouses had interest in the donations disbursed during the years 2016 and 2015,

except for donations paid to:

Name of Donee Directors

Mr. Ali S. Habib

Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib
Mr. Muhammad H. Habib

Habib Education Trust

Habib Medical Trust Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib

Habib Poor Fund Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib
Mr. Ali S. Habib

Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib
Mr. Mohomed Bashir

Mr. Muhammad H. Habib

Habib University Foundation

Mohamedali Habib Welfare Trust Mr. Ali S. Habib

Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib
Mr. Muhammad H. Habib

RahmatBai Habib Food & Clothing Trust

RahmatBai Habib Widows & Orphans Trust Mr. Muhammad H. Habib

Interest in Donee as

Member of the Board of Trustees
Member of the Board of Trustees
Member of the Board of Trustees
Member of the Board of Trustees
Member of the Board of Trustees
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Trustees

Member of the Board of Trustees
Member of the Board of Trustees

Member of the Board of Trustees

28.3 Auditors’ remuneration Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
Audit fee 2,200 2,000
Review of half-yearly financial statements 750 650
Certifications and agreed upon procedures engagements 7,723 6,178
Out-of-pocket expenses 1,437 1,044
12,110 9,872
28.4 This includes Rs. 19,866 thousand (2015: Nil) charged against non-banking assets.
OTHER PROVISIONS / WRITE OFF / (REVERSAL)
Reversal of provision against other assets - net 152 (173,750) -
Provision against off balance sheet obligations 19.1 - 14,989
Other write off 1,702 -
(172,048) 14,989



Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000

30. OTHER CHARGES

31.

62

Penalties imposed by the SBP 18,572 39,896
Workers' welfare fund 30.1 214,000 300,000
232,572 339,896

30.1 Under the Workers' Welfare Ordinance 1971, the Bank is liable to pay workers' welfare fund (WWF) @ 2% of accounting
profit before tax or taxable income, whichever is higher.

The Bank has made full provision for WWF based on profit for the respective years.
During the current year, the Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 has held that the
amendments made in the law introduced by the Federal Government for the levy of WWF were not lawful. The Federal

Board of Revenue has filed review petitions against this order which are currently pending.

Legal advice obtained on the matter indicates that consequent to filing of these review petitions the judgement may not
currently be treated as conclusive. Accordingly the Bank mantains its provision in respect of WWF.

TAXATION
For the year
Current 3,517,238 4,963,851
Deferred 14.1 115,877 (556,873)
3,633,115 4,406,978
For prior years
Current 581,308 476,000
312 4,214,423 4,882,978

31.1 Income tax assessments of the Bank have been finalised up to the tax year 2016 (corresponding to the accounting year
ended 31 December 2015). Certain appeals are pending with the Commissioner of Inland Revenue (Appeal) and Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). However, adequate provisions are being held by the Bank.

31.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before tax 10,333,747 12,538,911
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 35% (2015: 35%) 3,616,811 4,388,619
Prior years taxation 581,308 476,000
Others 16,304 18,359
Tax charge for the year 4,214,423 4,882,978

31.3 Through Finance Act, 2010 certain amendments have been introduced in Seventh Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. The provision for advances & off balance sheet items are allowed at 5% of total gross advances for consumer and
SMEs (as defined in the SBP Prudential Regulation). The provision for advances and off balance sheet items other than
those falling in definition of consumer & SMEs are allowed up to 1% of such total gross advances.
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32.

33.

34.

35.

Further, Rule 8(A) of Seventh Schedule allows for amounts provided for in tax year 2008 and prior to said tax year for
doubtful debts, which were neither claimed nor allowed as tax deductible in any year shall be allowed as deduction in

tax year in which such doubtful debts are written off.

With reference to allowability of provision, the management has carried out an exercise at period end and concluded that
full deduction of provision in succeeding years would be allowed and accordingly recognized deferred tax asset on such

provision amounting to Rs. 3,761,929 thousand (2015: Rs. 3,878,902 thousand).

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after taxation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Overdrawn nostro accounts
Overdrawn local bank accounts

STAFF STRENGTH

Permanent
Temporary / on contractual basis

Bank's own staff strength at end of the year
Outsourced

Total staff strength

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

35.1 General description

Note

2016 2015
Rupeesin ‘000 ———

6,119,324 7,655,933

—— (Numberin '000) ——

1,047,831 1,047,831

(Rupees) ———
584 7.31

Rupees in ‘000 ———

35,561,885 30,645,728

2,259,974 13,806,513

(773,124) (197,656)

(117,017) (195,431)

36,931,718 44,059,154
(Number)

3,646 3,331

265 279

3,911 3,610

686 667

4,597 4277

The benefits under the funded gratuity scheme are payable on retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service.
The benefit is equal to one month's last basic salary drawn for each year of eligible service subject to a maximum of
24 months last drawn basic salary. The minimum qualifying period for eligibility under the plan is five years of continuous

service.
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35.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out on 31 December 2016 using "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method".
The main assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were as follows:

Note 2016 2015
Discount rate - percent (per annum) 9.25 10.00
Expected rate of return on plan assets - percent (per annum) 9.25 10.00
Long term rate of salary increase - percent (per annum) 8.75 9.50
Mortality rates (for death in service) Adjusted Adjusted
SLIC SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005
Rate of employees turnover Moderate Moderate

35.3 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan
Rupees in ‘000

Fair value of plan assets 356 998,280 915,700
Present value of defined benefit obligations 357 (1,196,096) (1,143,805)
Amount payable to the plan (deficit) (197,816) (228,105)

The above balance includes actuarial gain of Rs. 30,289 thousand (2015: acturial loss of Rs. 32,288 thousand).

35.4 Movement in payable to defined benefit plan

Opening balance (acutarial losses) 228,105 198,712
Defined benefit charge to profit and loss account 355 149,094 123,765
Defined benefit charged to other comprehensive

income - actuarial (gain) / loss for the year 358 (30,289) 32,288
Contribution to the fund 356 (149,094) (126,660)
Closing balance 197,816 228,105

35.5 Charge for defined benefit plan

Current service cost 357 126,284 103,808
Net interest 357 110,415 107,691
Expected return on plan assets 356 (87,605) (87,734)
Total charge recognised in the profit and loss account 149,094 123,765

The expected gratuity cost for the year 2017 is Rs. 130,576 thousand as per actuarial valuation.

35.6 Movement in fair value of plan assets

Opening balance 915,700 762,904
Expected return on plan assets 355 87,605 87,734
Actuarial loss recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ 358 (74,825) (11,253)
Benefits paid 35.7 (79,294) (50,345)
Contribution to the fund 354 149,094 126,660
Closing balance 998,280 915,700
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35.7

35.8

35.9

35.10

35.11

Note 2016 2015
——— Rupees in ‘000

Movement in present value of defined benefit

obligation
Opening balance 1,143,805 961,616
Current service cost 355 126,284 103,808
Interest cost 355 110,415 107,691
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in ‘Other

Comprehensive Income’ 358 (105,114) 21,035
Benefits paid 356 (79,294) (50,345)
Closing balance 1,196,096 1,143,805
Annual actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in
‘Other Comprehensive Income’
Experience (gain) / loss on obligation 357 (105,114) 21,035
Experience loss on plan assets 356 74,825 11,253
Total (gain) / loss recognised during the year 354 (30,289) 32,288
Actual return on plan assets 12,780 76,481
Plan assets comprise the following:

Note 2016 2015
(Rupees in % (Rupeesin %
'000) '000)

Bank deposits 35.10.1 527,193  52.81 290,300 31.70
Federal government securities

(Pakistan Investment Bonds) 471,088  47.19 625,400 68.30

998,281  100.00 915,700 100.00

35.10.1 The amount represents balance which is deposited with branches of the Bank.
Re-measurements recognised in ‘Other

Comprehensive Income’ during the year

Note 2016

Actuarial gain / (loss) on obligation
- Demographic assumption -

2015
Rupees in ‘000 ————

- Financial assumptions (438) 51619
- Experience adjustment (104,676) (30,584)
Return on plan assets over interest income (12,780) (76,481)
Adjustment for mark-up 87,605 87,734

Total re-measurements recognised in Other

Comprehensive Income 3538 (30,289) 32,288
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35.12 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit
schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each

36.
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assumption is summarized below:

2016
Rupees in ‘000
Increase in discount rate by 1 % (117,823)
Decrease in discount rate by 1 % 139,316
Increase in expected future increment in salary by 1% 138,626
Decrease in expected future increment in salary by 1% (119,331)
Increase in expected withdrawal rate by 10% 289
Decrease in expected withdrawal rate by 10% (304)
Increase in expected mortality rate by 1% 234
Decrease in expected mortality rate by 1% (212)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of expected cash flows, it does provide an

approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

35.13 Historical information

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Rupees in ‘000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,196,096 1,143,805 961,616 816,018 613,972
Fair value of plan assets (998,280) (915,700) (762,904) (518394)  (512,140)
Deficit 197,816 228,105 198,712 297,624 101,832
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (105,114) 21,035 (16,895) 80,322 27416
Actuarial loss on assets 74,825 11,253 9327 24,126 7,089

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank operates a contributory provident fund scheme for permanent employees. The employer and employee each contribute
10% of the basic salary to the funded scheme every month. Investment made out of provident fund have been made in

accordance with the provision of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984.

36.1 Following information relates to provident fund scheme
based on audited accounts as of June 2016:

Note 2016 2015
— Rupeesin 000 ———
Size of the fund 2,631,087 2,277,064
Cost of investments made 36.1.1 2,398,340 1,854,256
Percentage of investments made 91% 81%
Fair value of investments 2,474,435 1,932,145
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37.

38.

Note 2016 2015
— Rupees in 000 ———
36.1.1 Breakup of investments made

Pakistan Investment Bonds 1,248,340 1,254,256
Term Deposits Receipts 1,150,000 600,000

2,398,340 1,854,256

Number of the members participating in the fund at the end of the year as per audited accounts are 3,087 (2015: 2,806).

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

President &
Chief Executive Directors Executives
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
Fees - - 7,800 8,775 - -
Managerial remuneration 59,100 55,500 - - 2,483,664 2,118,271
Charge for defined benefit plan 2,767 2,575 - - 89,723 81,987
Contribution to defined
contribution plan 3,300 3,120 - - 95,204 88,063

Utilities - - - 783 - -
Bonus 8,250 10,400 - - 263,639 327,963
Others - - - 4136 - -

73,417 71,595 7,800 13,694 2,932,230 2,616,284
Number of persons 1 1 6 7 1,208 1,083

37.1 The Chief Executive and certain executives are provided with free use of car and household equipment in
accordance with their terms of employment. The Chief Executive is also provided with leave fare assistance.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability be settled, between knowledgeable and willing
parties in an arm's length transaction.

The fair value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices except for tradable securities classified by the Bank as
"held-to-maturity". These securities are being carried at amortized cost in order to comply with the requirements of BSD Circular
No. 14 dated 24 September 2004, and have been disclosed in "Annexure I,

Fair value of unlisted equity investments is determined on the basis of breakup value of these investments as per the latest
available financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability
due to the absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar
instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with the Bank's accounting
policy as stated in note 5.5.

The maturity and repricing profile and effective rates are stated in notes 43.5.1 and 43.4 respectively.
In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different

from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short-term in nature or in the case of customer loans and deposits
are frequently repriced.
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38.1 Off-balance sheet financial instruments

2016 2015
Contracted Fair Contracted Fair
Value Value Value Value
Rupees in ‘000
Forward purchase of foreign exchange contracts 76,832,902 76,022,687 80,770,251 80,490,986
Forward sale of foreign exchange contracts 66,117,312 66,779,677 73,381,353 73,490,991

38.2 The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

2016
Carrying Fair value
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rupees in ‘000

Financial assets measured at fair value

- Investments
- Available-for-sale securities
Federal government securities 274,117,633 - 274,117,633 - 274,117,633
Sukuk certificates and bonds 1,149,362 - 1,149,362 - 1,149,362
Ordinary shares of listed companies 1,840,554 1,840,554 - - 1,840,554
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies 28,962 - 28,962 - 28,962
Mutual funds 4,678,866 4,678,866 - - 4,678,866
Listed term finance certificates 2,024,268 2,024,268 - - 2,024,268
Unlisted term finance certificates 287,330 - 287,330 - 287,330
Financial assets not measured at fair value
- Cash and balances with treasury banks 35,561,885 - - - -
- Balances with other banks 2,259,974 - - - -
- Lending to financial institutions 16,750,886 - - - -
- Investments
- Held-to-maturity securities
Federal government securities 27,642,036 - - - -
Certificates of investments 2,200,000 - - - -
- Subsidiaries
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies 650,000 - - - -
- Advances 142,962,103 - - - -
- Other assets 6,731,246 - - - -
518,885,105 8,543,688 275,583,287 - 284,126,975

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

- Bills Payable 8,108,633 - - - -
- Deposits and other accounts 430,888,036 - - - -
- Borrowings 37,205,175 - - - -
- Other liabilities 9,815,265 - - - -

486,017,109 - - - -

32,867,996 8,543,688 275,583,287 284,126,975
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Financial assets measured at fair value
- Investments
- Available-for-sale securities

Federal government securities
Sukuk certificates and bonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
Mutual funds
Listed term finance certificates
Unlisted term finance certificates

Financial assets not measured at fair value
- Cash and balances with treasury banks
- Balances with other banks
- Lending to financial institutions
- Investments
- Held-to-maturity securities
Federal government securities
Certificates of investments
- Subsidiaries
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
- Advances
- Other assets

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
- Bills Payable

- Deposits and other accounts

- Borrowings

- Other liabilities

2015

Carrying
value

Fair value

Level 1

246,999,034
1,447,645
1,081,362

31,504
6,128,101
1,890,841

416,110

30,645,728
13,806,513
2,800,000

31,177,134
3,300,000

307,500
132,646,839
10,359,968

1,081,362
6,128,101
1,890,841

Level 2
Rupees in‘'000

246,999,034
1,447,645
31,504

416,110

Level 3

Total

246,999,034

1,447,645
1,081,362

31,504

6,128,101
1,890,841

416,110

483,038,279

6,344,461
403,354,957
31,462,822
10,840,843

9,100,304

248,894,293

257,994,597

452,003,083

31,035,196

9,100,304

248,894,293

257,994,597

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making

the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.

unobservable inputs).
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TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank s currently not engaged in any trust activities.

SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The segment analysis with respect to business activities is as follows:

Total income *
Total expenses *

Net income

Segment assets

Segment non performing loans

Segment provision required
Segment liabilities

Segment return on net assets (ROA) (%)

Segment cost of funds (%)

Total income *
Total expenses *

Net income
Segment assets
Segment non performing loans

Segment provision required
Segment liabilities

Segment return on net assets (ROA) (%)

Segment cost of funds (%)

*Includes Rs. 17,542,065 thousand (2015: Rs. 16,732,275 thousand) of inter-segment revenues and expenses.

2016
Trade & Retail Commercial Total
Sales banking banking
Rupees in ‘000
27,916,813 3,837,879 27,795,710 59,550,402
(20,947,981) (2,738,219) (25,530,455) (49,216,655)
6,968,832 1,099,660 2,265,255 10,333,747
334,350,424 2,363,424 189,892,569 526,606,417
- 4,554 19,868,588 19,873,142
- 4,554 16,792,385 16,796,939
14,822,820 65,055,739 407,057,408 486,935,967
8.35% 5.90% 6.83%
6.27% 421% 6.27%
2015
Trade & Retail Commercial Total
Sales banking banking
Rupees in ‘000
31,661,500 6,044,141 25,058,381 62,764,028
(23,875914) (4,069,849 (22,279,354) (50,225,117)
7,785,592 1,974,292 2,779,027 12,538,911
318,305,369 2274418 169,299,321 489,879,108
- 5614 18,481,368 18,486,982
- 5614 16,527,223 16,532,837
9,539,309 91,433,517 352,078,478 453,051,304
9.95% 6.61% 7.12%
7.50% 445% 6.33%
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41. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Bank has related party relationships with its holding company, subsidiaries, companies with common directorship, key
management personnel, directors and employees' retirement benefit plans.

Contributions in respect of employees' retirement benefits are made in accordance with actuarial valuation and terms of
contribution plan. Salaries & allowances of the key management personnel are in accordance with the terms of their
employment. Other transactions are at agreed terms.

Deposits

At beginning of the year
Received during the year
Repaid during the year

At end of the year

Advances

At beginning of the year

Disbursed during the year
Recovered during the year

Atend of the year

Bank balances held by
the Bank

Overdrawn bank balances
held by the Bank

Mark-up / return / interest
receivable

Mark-up / return / interest
payable

Management fee payable
for technical and
consultancy services *

Prepayments / Advance
deposits

Insurance premium and
other payables

Transaction-related
contingent liabilities

Trade-related contingent
liabilities

31 December 2016

Holding  Subsidiaries  Associates Key Directors  Retirement Total
company management benefit
personnel plans
Rupees in ‘000

304,504 152,334 17,875,031 66,322 498,364 1,121,035 20,017,590
22,750,934 68,102,830 1,433,239,459 758,702 2,016,849 2406913 1,529,275,687
(22,551,639)  (67,810,835) (1,431,122,046) (695,338)  (1,976,678) (1,861,670) (1,526,018,206)
503,799 444,329 19,992,444 129,686 538,535 1,666,278 23,275,071

- - 3,967,805 128,974 - - 4,096,779

- 10,937 63,535,889 61,857 - - 63,608,683
- - (64,319,195) (46,187) - - (64,365,382)

- 10,937 3,184,499 144,644 - - 3,340,080
292,215 - 29,364 - - - 321,579

- - 6,472 - - - 6,472

- - 1,457 - - - 1,457

- 94 325,084 4,954 2,169 351,899 684,200
180,265 - - - - - 180,265

- - 26,265 - - - 26,265

- - 830 - - - 830

- - 4,670,305 - - - 4,670,305

- - 5,041,474 - - - 5,041,474

* Management fee is as per the agreement with the holding company.



Deposits

At beginning of the year
Received during the year
Repaid during the year

Atend of the year

Advances

At beginning of the year
Disbursed during the year
Recovered during the year

Atend of the year

Bank balances held by
the Bank

Mark-up / retumn / interest
receivable

Mark-up / retumn / interest
payable

Management fee payable
for technicaland
consultancy services *

Prepayments / Advance
deposits

Insurance Premium and
other payable

Transaction-related
contingent liabilities

Trade-related contingent
liabilities

31 December 2015

Holding  Subsidiaries  Associates Key Directors  Retirement Total
company management benefit
personnel plans
Rupees in ‘000
294869 81,605 19676536 49180 385250 1098520 21585960
23579657 83342253 1346712261 601,770 3,069,135 1180760 1458485836
(23570022)  (83271524)  (1,348513760) (584628) (2956021)  (1,158245)  (1,460,054,206)
304,504 152334 17875031 06322 498364 1,121,035 20017590
- - 1,840.385 163,281 - - 2003666
- 281577 44,304,667 69,149 - - 44715393
- (281577) (42,237,247) (103456) - - (42622,280)
- - 3,967,805 128974 - - 4,096,779
122080 - 59632 - - - 181,712
- - 3898 - - - 3898
- 415 322640 856 2352 194406 520669
283577 - - - - - 283577
- - 2563 - - - 2563
30200 - 4371 - - - 34571
- - 2598280 - - - 2598280
- - 4342731 - - - 4342731

* Management fee is as per the agreement with the holding company.
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Transactions during the year

Mark-up / return / interest earned

Mark-up / return/interest
expensed

Commission / Brokerage / Bank
charges recovered

Commission / Brokerage / Bank
charges paid

Rent income

Salaries and allowances
Directors' fees

Charge for defined benefit plan

Charge for defined
contribution plan

Rent expenses
Insurance premium expenses

Maintenance, electricity,
stationery and entertainment

Management fee expense
for technical and
consultancy services *

Donation paid

Professional / Other
charges paid

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Holding  Subsidiaries Associates Key Directors  Retirement Total
company management benefit
personnel plans
Rupees in ‘000

- 79 101,224 5,459 - - 106,762

- 3,867 1,145,812 5,815 23,557 173,421 1,352,472
5,568 190 164,783 - 79 - 170,620
295 244 756 - - - 1,295
5615 1,200 - - - - 6,815

- - - 329,416 - - 329,416

- - - - 7,800 - 7,800

- - - - - 149,094 149,094

- - - - - 151,285 151,285

- - 11,441 - - - 11,441
2,752 - 43,859 - - - 46,611

- - 52,769 - - - 52,769
107,620 - - - - - 107,620
- - 43,840 - - - 43,840

- - 209 - - - 209

* Management fee is as per the agreement with the holding company.
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Transactions during the year

Mark-up / return / interest earned

Mark-up / return / interest
expensed

Commission / Brokerage / Bank

charges recovered

Commission / Brokerage /
Bank charges paid

Rentincome
Salaries and allowances
Directors' fees

Charge for defined
benefit plan

Charge for defined
contribution plan

Rent expenses
Insurance premium expenses

Maintenance, electricity,
stationery and
entertainment

Management fee expense
for technical and
consultancy
services *

Donation paid

Professional / Other charges paid

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Holding Subsidiaries  Associates Key Directors  Retirement  Total
company management benefit
personnel plans
Rupees in ‘000
- 851 68,824 10,200 - - 79,875
- 5,349 1,440,674 3913 27,301 162,386 1,639,623
7,670 22 135810 - 137 - 143639
703 242 825 - - - 1,770
21,440 1,200 - - - - 22,640
- - - 328,119 - - 328119
- - - - 8,775 - 8,775
- - - - - 123,765 123,765
- - - - - 138495 138495
- - 12,990 - - - 12,990
- - 6,215 - - - 6,215
- - 53,104 - - - 53,104
246,524 - - - - - 246524
- - 17,840 - - - 17,840
- - 2,087 - - - 2,087

* Management fee is as per the agreement with the holding company.
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42. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY
421 Scope of Applications

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular No 6 dated 15 August 2013 has issued Basel Ill Capital
instructions for Banks / DFls. The revision to the previously applicable Capital Adequacy regulations pertain to
components of eligible capital and related deductions. The amendments have been introduced with an aim to further
strengthen the existing capital related rules. Basel lll instructions have become effective from 31 December 2013;
however, there is a transitional phase during which the complete requirements would become applicable with full
implementation by 31 December 2019. This Capital Adequacy framework is applicable to the Bank.

The Bank's capital adequacy is reported using the rules and ratios provided by the State Bank of Pakistan. The capital
adequacy ratio is a measure of the amount of a the Bank's capital expressed as a percentage of its risk weighted assets
(RWAs). Banking operations are categorized as either Trading Book or Banking Book and RWAs are determined
according to specific treatments as per the requirements of the SBP that measure the varying levels of risk attached
to on balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. Under the current capital adequacy regulations, credit risk and
market risk exposures are measured using the Standardized Approach and operational risk is measured using the
Basic Indicator Approach. Credit risk mitigates are also applied against the Bank's exposures based on eligible collateral.

42.1.1Capital management

The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. It is the policy
of the Bank to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, depositor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The Bank aims to maintain an optimum level of capital along with
maximizing shareholders' return.

Statutory minimum capital requirement and capital adequacy ratio

The SBP through its BSD Circular No. 07 dated 15 April 2009 has prescribed the minimum paid-up capital (net of
accumulated losses) for Banks to be raised to Rs.10 billion by the year ending 31 December 2013. The paid-up capital
of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2016 stood at Rs. 10,478 million (2015: Rs. 10,478 million) and is in
compliance with the SBP requirements.

Banks are also required to maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10.65% of the risk weighted exposures
of the Bank. Further, under Basel Il instructions, Banks are also required to maintain a Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)
ratio and Tier 1 ratio of 6.00% and 7.50%, respectively, as at 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016 the Bank
was fully compliant with prescribed ratios as the Banks's CAR was 18.15% whereas CET 1 and Tier 1 ratios both stood
at 17.27%. The Bank and its individually requlated operations have complied with all capital requirements throughout
the year.

Tier 1 capital comprises of Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) and Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) capital.

CET 1 capital includes fully paid-up capital, balance in share premium account, general reserves as per the financial
statements and net un-appropriated profits meeting the eligibility criteria.

AT 1 capital includes instruments meeting the prescribed SBP criteria e.g. perpetual non-cumulative preference shares.
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The deductions from Tier 1 capital include mainly;

D) Book value of goodwill / intangibles;

i) Deficit on revaluation of available for sale investments;

i) Reciprocal cross holdings in equity capital instruments of other banks, financial institutions and insurance companies;
iv) Investment in mutual funds above a prescribed ceiling;

V) Threshold deductions applicable from 2014 on deferred tax assets and certain investments;

Vi) 20% of investments in majority owned securities or other financial subsidiaries not consolidated in the statement
of financial position, during transition phase.

Tier 2 capital includes general provisions for loan losses, surplus on the revaluation of assets - net of tax, foreign exchange
translation reserves and subordinated debts (meeting the revised eligibility criteria). The deductions from Tier 2
include mainly:

i) Reciprocal cross holdings in other capital instruments of other banks, financial institution and insurance companies;

i) 20% of investments in majority owned securities or other financial subsidiaries not consolidated in the statement
of financial position, during transition phase.
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42.2 Capital Structure

Source based
Note 2016 2015 on reference
number from
Rupees in ‘000 Note 4242
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves
Fully paid-up capital / capital deposited with SBP 10,478,315 10478315 (s)
Balance in share premium account 2,550,985 2,550,985
Reserve for issue of bonus shares - -
Discount on issue of shares - -
General / statutory reserves 11,382,890 10,159,025 (u)
Gain / (losses) on derivatives held as cash flow hedge - -
Unappropriated / unremitted profits / (|osses) 12,753,139 9,931,633 (w)
Minority interests arising from CETT capital instruments issued to third
party by consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in
CET1 capital of the consolidation group) - - (x)
CET 1 before regulatory adjustments 37,165,329 33,119,958
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 4.2 1,060,732 614,812
Common Equity Tier 1 36,104,597 32,505,146
Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premium - -
of which: classified as equity - - (t)
of which: classified as liabilities - - (m)
Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated
subsidiaries (amount allowed in group AT 1) - - (v)
of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out - -

AT1 before regulatory adjustments - -
Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capital 4222 - -

Additional Tier 1 capital after requlatory adjustments - -

Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy - -
Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) 36,104,597 32,505,146
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Tier 2 Capital

Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel Ill plus any
related share premium
Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement issued
under pre-Basel Il Rules
Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated
subsidiaries (amount allowed in group tier 2)
of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum
of 1.25% of credit risk weighted assets
Revaluation reserves (net of taxes)
of which: revaluation reserves on fixed assets
of which: unrealized gains / losses on AFS
Foreign exchange translation reserves
Undisclosed / other reserves
T2 before regulatory adjustments
Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital
Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments
Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy
Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital
Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy
Total capital (T1 + admissible T2)

Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)

CET1 to total RWA

Tier-1 capital to total RWA

Total capital to total RWA
Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus

capital conservation buffer plus any other buffer requirement)

of which: capital conservation buffer requirement

of which: countercyclical buffer requirement

of which: D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement
CET1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)
National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP

CETT minimum ratio
Tier T minimum ratio
Total capital minimum ratio

/8

Source based

Note 2016 2015 onreference
number from
Rupees in 000 ——— Note424.2
- - ()
@)
134,110 896,749 @)
- - | portion of (aa)
1,833,346 2,484,257
- - (v)
1,967,456 3,381,006
4223 (130,000) (92,250)
1,837,456 3,288,756
1,837,456 3,288,756
1,837,456 3,288,756
37,942,053 35,793,902
425 209,026,637 195,063,432
17.27% 16.66%
17.27% 16.66%
18.15% 18.35%
6.00% 6.00%
11.27% 10.66%
6.00% 6.00%
7.50% 7.50%
1065% 10.25%



HABIBMETRO

42.2.1 Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments

Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)

All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability)

Shortfall in provisions against classified assets

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those
arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments of banking,
financial and insurance entities

Cash flow hedge reserve

Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments

Securitization gain on sale

Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries

Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed assets / AFS

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
entities that are outside the scope of requlatory consolidation, where the
bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital
(@mount above 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
(amount above 10% threshold)

Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above
10% threshold, net of related tax liability)

Amount exceeding 15% threshold
of which: significant investments in the common stocks of financial entities
of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital

Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit

Any other deduction specified by SBP

Regulatory adjustment applied to CETT due to insufficient AT1 and

Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1

42.2.2 Additional Tier 1 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SBP specific adjustment)
Investment in own AT1 capital instruments
Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
entities that are outside the scope of requlatory consolidation, where the
bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation
Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital | based
on pre-Basel lll treatment which, during transitional period, remain
subject to deduction from additional tier-1 capital
Adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient
Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital

Amounts Source based
subject to on reference
2016 Pre-Basel ll 2015 number from
treatment Note 424.2
Rupees in ‘000
- - - () - (0)
190,510 - - (h) - (p)
- - - (f)
- - - {i) - *x%
- : - | O-@r
740,222 - 522,562 (d)
- - - (ab)
- - - (@) - (ac) - (ae)
- - - (b) - (ad) - (af)
- : : )
130,000 130,000 92,250
1,060,732 130,000 614,812

- - - (ad)28
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Amounts Source based

subject to on reference
2016 Pre-Basel ll 2015 number from
treatment Note 424.2

Rupees in ‘000

42.2.3 Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital
based on pre-Basel lll treatment which, during transitional period, remain
subject to deduction from Tier 2 capital 130,000 130,000 92,250
Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entities - - -
Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument - - -
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does
not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above

10% threshold) - - - (ae)
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - - - (af)
Amount of requlatory adjustment applied to Tier 2 capital 130,000 130,000 92,250
2016 2015

42.2.4 Additional Information — Rupeesin ‘000 ——
Risk weighted assets in respect of amounts subject to Pre-Basel lll Treatment
Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items (which during the
transitional period will be risk weighted subject to Pre-Basel lll treatment)

(i) of which: deferred tax assets - -
(ii) of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets - -
(iii) of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial

and insurance entities where holding is less than 10% of the issued common share

capital of the entity - -
(iv) of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and

insurance entities where holding is more than 10% of the issued common share

capital of the entity - -

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities 3,023,453 2577212
Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities 390,000 123,000
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) 2,541,973 1938628

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to

standardized approach (prior to application of cap) 134,110 896,749
Cap oninclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized approach 2,102,633 1,971,683
Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject

to internal ratings—based approach (prior to application of cap) - -
Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings based approach - -
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42.3 Capital Structure Reconciliation

42.3.1 Step 1
The accounting consolidation is identical to the scope of regulatory consolidation.
42.3.2 Step 2
2016
Balance sheet Under
asin published regulatory
financial scope of
statements consolidation Ref.
Rupees in ‘000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 35,561,885 35,561,885
Balances with other banks 2,259,974 2,259,974
Lendings to financial institutions 16,750,886 16,750,886
Investments 314,619,011 314619011
of which: Non-significant investments in capital instruments
of banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding 10% threshold - - 3

of which: significant investments in the capital instruments

issued by banking, financial and insurance entities exceeding regulatory threshold - - b
of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold - - C
of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument (separate for CET1, AT1,T2) 740,222 740,222 d
of which: others - - e
Advances 142,962,103 142,962,103
shortfall in provisions / excess of total EL amount over eligible
provisions under IRB - - f
general provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital 134,110 134,110 g
Fixed Assets 3,246,376 3,246,376
of which: Intangibles 190,510 190,510 h
Deferred Tax Assets 2,458,685 2,458,685
of which: DTAs that rely on future profitability excluding those arising
from temporary differences - - i
of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences exceeding regulatory threshold - - j
Other assets 8,747,497 8,747497
of which: Goodwill - - k
of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets - - |
Total assets 526,606,417 526,606,417




Liabilities & Equity
Bills payable
Borrowings
Deposits and other accounts
Sub-ordinated loans
of which: eligible for inclusion in AT1
of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liabilities
of which: DTLs related to goodwill
of which: DTLs related to intangible assets
of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets
of which: other deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Share capital
of which: amount eligible for CET1
of which: amount eligible for AT1
Reserves
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1
(statutory reserve, special reserve & revenue reserve)
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Unappropriated profit/ (Iosses)
Minority Interest
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT1
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Surplus on revaluation of assets
of which: revaluation reserves on non-banking assets
of which: unrealized gains / losses on AFS - recognised
of which: unrealized gains / losses on AFS - unrecognised
In case of deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1)
Total Equity
Total liabilities and Equity
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2016

Balance sheet Under
asin published regulatory
financial scope of
statements consolidation

Rupees in ‘000

8,108,633 8,108,633
37,205,175 37,205,175
430,888,036 430,888,036
10,734,123 10,734,123
486,935,967 486,935,967
13,029,300 13,029,300
13,029,300 13,029,300
11,382,890 11,382,890
11,382,890 11,382,890
12,753,139 12,753,139
2,505,121 2,505,121
154,678 154,678
1,833,346 1,833,346
517,097 517,097
39,670,450 39,670,450
526,606,417 526606417

Ref.

- O T O

aa

dad



HABIBMETRO

42.4 Main features template of regulatory capital instruments

T lssuer Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd.
2 Unique identifier (eg PSX Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc) HMB
3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Capital Market Law

Regulatory treatment

4 Transitional Basel Il rules Common Equity Tier 1
5 Post-transitional Basel Ill rules Common Equity Tier 1
6 Eligible at solo / group / group & solo Group & standalone
7 Instrument type Common Shares
8  Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR
thousand, as of reporting date) 37,942,053

9  Parvalue of instrument PKR 10
10 Accounting classification Shareholder equity
11 Original date of issuance 1992
12 Perpetual or dated Perpetual
13 Original maturity date No maturity
14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval Not Applicable
15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount Not Applicable
16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable

Coupons / dividends Not Applicable
17 Fixed or floating dividend/ coupon Not Applicable
18 coupon rate and any related index/ benchmark Not Applicable
19 Existence of a dividend stopper No
20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory Fully discretionary
21 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem No
22 Noncumulative or cumulative Not Applicable
23 Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible
24 If convertible, conversion trigger (s) Not Applicable
25 If convertible, fully or partially Not Applicable
26 If convertible, conversion rate Not Applicable
27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion Not Applicable
28 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into Not Applicable
29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into Not Applicable
30 Write-down feature Not Applicable
31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) Not Applicable
32 Ifwrite-down, full or partial Not Applicable
33 If write-down, permanent or temporary Not Applicable
34 Iftemporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism Not Applicable
35 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument

type immediately senior to instrument) Not Applicable

36 Non-compliant transitioned features Not Applicable
37 Ifyes, specify non-compliant features Not Applicable
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42.5 Risk Weighted Assets

The risk weighted assets to capital ratio, calculated in accordance with the SBP's guidelines on capital adequacy is as

follows:

Credit risk Capital Requirements Risk Weighted Assets

Portfolios subject to standardised 2016 2015 2016 2015
approach (Simple)

DHIPTE) Rupees in‘000
On-balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalents - - - _
Government of Pakistan and SBP - - _ _
Public sector entities 206,003 189,604 2,060,031 1,896,038

Banks 727,202 867,766 7,272,022 8,677,659
Corporate 9,504,482 8,939,024 95,044,818 89,390,240
Retail 510,882 320,244 5,108,816 3,202,441
Residential mortgage finance 77,413 61,222 774,128 612,217
Past due loans 356,783 194,565 3,567,825 1,945,650
Operating fixed assets 305,587 312,478 3,055,866 3,124,779
Other assets 916,420 697,534 9,164,196 6,975,336

12,604,772 11,582,437 126,047,702 115,824,360

Off-balance sheet

Non market related 3,772,404 3,808,163 37,724,037 38,081,626
Market related 86,924 97,895 869,238 978,954
3,859,328 3,906,058 38,593,275 39,060,580

Equity Exposure Risk in the Banking Book
Under simple risk weight method
e.g. Listed, Unlisted 356,964 284,969 3,569,637 2,849,691

Under Internal models approach - - -

356,964 284,969 3,569,637 2,849,691
Total Credit Risk 16,821,064 15,773,464 168,210,614 157,734,631
Market risk
Capital requirement for portfolios
subject to Standardised Approach
Interest rate risk 39,842 149,566 498,025 1,869,575
Equity position risk 671,075 506,991 8,388,432 6,337,388
Foreign exchange risk 50,216 13,929 627,700 174,112
Total Market risk 761,133 670,486 9,514,157 8,381,075
Operational risk
Capital requirement for operational
risks subject to Basic Indicator Approach 2,504,149 2,315,818 31,301,866 28,947,726
Total Risk Weighted Assets 20,086,346 18,759,768 209,026,637 195,063,432
Capital adequacy ratio
P q y 2016 2015
Required Actual Required Actual
% %
CET1 to total RWA 6.00% 17.27% 6.00% 16.66%
Tier—1 capital to total RWA 7.50% 17.27% 7.50% 16.66%

Total capital to total RWA including
capital conversion buffer 10.65% 18.15% 10.25% 18.35%



HABIBMETRO

42.6

42.7

Credit risk - General disclosures

The Bank uses the 'Standardised Approach'in calculation of credit risk and capital requirements.

The Bank uses reputable and SBP approved rating agencies for deriving risk weight to specific credit exposures. These
are applied consistently across the Bank credit portfolio for both on - balance sheet and off - balance sheet exposures.
The methodology applied for using External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAI's) inclusive of the alignment of alpha
numerical scale of each agency used with risk bucket is as per SBP guidelines as given below:

Types of exposures and ECAI's used 2016

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA S&P Fitch Moody's
Corporate 4 4 - - -
Banks 4 v v

Sovereigns - - - - -
SME's v v - - _
Securitisation - - - - -
Others - - - - -

Credit Exposures subject to Standardised Approach

2016 2015
Rating Amount  Deduction Net Amount  Deduction Net
Exposures category outstanding CRM amount outstanding CRM amount
Rupees in ‘000
Corporate 1 10,902,240 37,409 10,864,831 8,444,231 37,503 8,406,728
2 5,930,650 892,506 5,038,144 4,001,131 830,135 3,170,996
34 494,949 - 494,949 - - -
56 - - - - - -
Claims on banks with
original maturity of 3
months or less 11,646,102 478,066 11,168,036 8,671,285 - 8,671,285
Retail 12,048,722 3,162,578 8,886,144 8,576,628 2,502,144 6,074,484
Public sector entities 1 5,957,423 14,273 5,943,150 12,653,222 13,638 12,639,584
23 1,405,364 - 1,405,364 - - -
Others 388,827,871 12,093,000 376,734,871 359,339,797 9,407,000 349,932,797
Unrated 134,090,357 17,339,243 116,751,114 128,990,387 13823401 115,166,986

The forms of collateral that are deemed eligible under the ‘Simple Approach’to credit risk mitigation as per the SBP
guidelines are used by the Bank and primarily includes cash, government and rated debt securities.

The Bank applies SBP specified haircut to collateral for credit risk mitigation. Collateral management is embedded in
the Bank’s risk taking and risk management policy and procedures. A standard credit granting procedure exists which
has been well-disseminated down the line, ensuring proper pre-sanction evaluation, adequacy of security, pre-
examination of charge / control documents and monitoring of each exposure on an ongoing basis.

Collateral information is recorded diligently in the Bank's main processing systems by type of collateral, amount of
collateral against relevant credit exposures. A cohesive accounting / risk management system facilitates effective
collateral management for Basel Il reporting.
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42.8 Leverage Ratio

The Basel Il leverage ratio is defined as the capital measure (the numerator) divided by the exposure measure (the
denominator), with this ratio expressed as a percentage. As at 31 December 2016 the Bank's Leverage ratio stood at
5.66% (2015: 5.46%) which is well above the minimum requirement of 3.0%.

Note 2016 2015

Rupees in ‘000 ———
Total assets 526,606,417 489,879,108
Less: Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 422 1,060,732 614,812
Total assets net of regulatory adjustments 525,545,685 489,264,296
Commitments in respect of derivatives - off balance sheet items 1,283,686 1,334,860
Total off-balance sheet commitments excluding derivatives 22 111,574,752 105,097,082
Total exposures (A) 638,404,123 595,696,238
Tier-1 Capital (B) 422 36,104,597 32,505,146
Leverage Ratio (B/A) 5.66% 5.46%

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management aspects are embedded in the Bank's strategy, organization structure and processes. The Bank has adopted a
cohesive risk management structure for credit, operations, liquidity, market risk with an integrated approach to strengthen the
process and system as controls are more effective and valuable when built into the process. Effective risk management is considered
essential in the preservation of the assets and long-term profitability of the Bank. Clear guidelines and limits, which are under
regular review, are backed by a system of internal controls and independent audit inspections. Internal reporting / MIS are additional
tools for measuring and controlling risks. Separation of duties is also embedded in the Bank’s system and organization.

43.1 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a transaction may default. It arises principally in relation to
the lending and trade finance business carried out by the Bank.

As per Basel Il methodology the gross credit risk weighted exposure incorporating relevant credit conversion factor is
Rs. 168,210,614 thousand (2015: Rs. 157,734,631 thousand) as depicted in note 42.5.

The Bank’s strategy is to minimize credit risk through a strong pre-disbursement credit analysis, approval and risk
measurement process added with product, geography and customer diversification. The Bank, as its strategic preference,
extends trade and working capital financing, so as to keep the major portion of exposure (funded and non-funded) on a
short-term, self-liquidating basis. Major portion of the Bank's credit portfolio is priced on flexible basis with pricing reviewed
on periodic basis.

Centralized Credit and Trade processing centres staffed with experienced resource provide strength to post-disbursement
aspect of credit risk management.

The Bank’s credit policy / manual defines the credit extension criteria, the credit approval and monitoring process, the loan
classification system and provisioning policy.

The Bank continually assesses and monitors credit exposures. The Bank follows both objective and subjective criteria of
SBP regarding loans classification. The subjective assessment process is based on management's judgment with respect
to the borrower's character, activity, cash flow, capital structure, security, quality of management and delinquency.



HABIBMETRO

43.1.1 Segmental information

2016
Segment by class of business Advances (Gross) Deposits Cop;m?neitngee;gnd
(Rs. in ‘000) % (Rs.in '000) % (Rs. in '000) %

Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing 781,149 049 16,412,506 3.81 139,392 0.05
Automobile and transportation equipment 1,674,373 1.05  19,725977 458 7318858 264
Cement 1,205,318 0.75 5,755,722 1.34 2,899,744 1.04
Chemicals and pharmaceuticals 9,139,668 572 19,531,761 453 10327251  3.72
Construction 2,945,764 1.84 17,793,045 413 1,312,322 0.47
Commodity Finance 12,093,000 7.56 - - - -

Electronics and electrical appliances 5,299,006 331 31,403,493 729 4604132 166
Exports / imports 4,525,538 2.83 11,722,008 272 15,434,961 5.56
Financial 1,692,493 1.06 11,885,676 276 113,781,180  40.99
Footwear and leather garments 706,630 044 11,700,093 2.72 298,991  0.11
Individuals 2,841,087 1.78 43,338,486 10.06 205,311 0.07
Insurance - - 604,593 0.14 - -

Mining and quarrying 3,487,784 218 16,373,814 3.80 304785 0.1
Power (electricity), gas, water, sanitary 22,678,878 1418 10,529,617 244 10,841,518 391
Services 485,113 030 30,114,136 6.99 3,670,837 1.32
Sugar 2,287,400 1.43 2,298,547 0.53 314,804 0.1
Textile 65,060,557 40.69 34,709,573 8.06 69,471,545 25.03
Transport, storage and communication 1,881,832 118 21,929,423 5.09 1,624,699 0.59
Wholesale and retail trade 4,910,124 3.07 10,074,932 2.34 7,495,868 2.70
Others 16,197,438 10.14 114,984,634 26.67 27,540,297 9.92

159,893,152 100.00 430,888,036  100.00 277,586,495 100.00

2016
Advances (Gross) Deposits Contingencies and
commitments
Segment by sector (Rs.in ‘000) % (Rs.in '000) % (Rs.in '000) %
Public / Government 25,446,807 15.91 40,427,614 9.38 5,107,914 1.84
Private 134,446,345 84.09 390,460,422 90.62 272,478,581 98.16

159,893,152 100.00 430,888,036  100.00 277,586,495 100.00

Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by class of business segment

2016 2015
» Specific - Specific
Classified provision Classified provision
advances held advances held
Rupees in‘000
Automobile and transportation equipment 1,519,602 1,518,885 1,514,514 1,514,514
Chemicals and pharmaceuticals 339,687 301,854 366,002 296,909
Construction 189,056 68,412 194,060 29,764
Electronics and electrical appliances 523,887 523,887 529,272 527,022
Exports / imports 99,020 - 981,241 864,839
Footwear and leather garments 17,430 17,430 23,428 17,668
Individuals 6,691 5,671 7,138 5,863
Power (electricity), gas, water, sanitary 23,229 23,229 245,504 52,867
Services 100,384 51,785 87,377 51,135
Textile 14,728,045 12,284,223 12,095,339 11,314,648
Transport, storage and communication 5,619 4,999 9,201 6,823
Wholesale and retail trade 427,690 303,006 778,827 471,751
Others 1,892,802 1,693,558 1,655,079 1,379,034

19,873,142 16,796,939 18,486,982 16,532,837
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43.2

43.3

Details of non-performing advances and specific provisions by sector

2016 2015
» Specific - Specific
Classified provision Classified provision
advances held advances held
Rupees in ‘000
Private 19,873,982 16,796,939 18,486,982 16,532,837
Geographical segment anlaysis
2016
Profit Total Contingencies
before assets Net z?ssets and
taxation employed employed commitments
Rupees in ‘000
Pakistan 10,333,747 526,606,417 39,670,450 277,586,495

Total assets employed include intra group items of Rs. 292,215 thousand.

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk of loss in earnings and capital due to adverse changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and market conditions.

The Board of Directors oversees the Bank's strategy for market risk exposures. Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)
which comprises of senior management oversees the statement of financial position of the Bank, assesses the impact
of interest rate change on the Bank's investment portfolio through stress testing, and performs oversight function to
ensure sound asset quality, liquidity and pricing. The investment policy amongst other aspects covers the Bank asset
allocation guidelines inclusive of equity investments. While market risk limits are in place and are monitored effectively,
the Bank has also formalized liquidity and market risk management policies which contain action plans to strengthen
the market risk management system and a middle office function oversees limit adherence. Market risk can be categorised
into Interest Rate Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk and Equity Position Risk.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the probability of loss resulting from adverse movement in exchange rates.

The Bank's business model for foreign exchange risk is to serve trading activities of its clients in an efficient and cost
effective manner. The Bank is not in the business of actively trading and market making activities and all FX exposures

are backed by customer's trade transaction. A conservative risk approach backed by the Bank’s business strategy to
work with export oriented clients gives the ability to meet its foreign exchange needs.
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Pakistan Rupee

United States Dollar
Euro

Great Britain Pound
Asian Currency Unit
Japanese Yen

Arab Emirates Dirham
Canadian Dollar
Australian Dollar
Saudi Riyal

Other Currencies

Pakistan Rupee

United States Dollar
Euro

Great Britain Pound
Asian Currency Unit
Japanese Yen

Arab Emirates Dirham
Canadian Dollar
Australian Dollar
Saudi Riyal

Other Currencies

Assets Liablities heetitoms rens
Rupees in ‘000 Exposure

488,714,936 437,298,381 (11,969,666) 39,446,889
33,997,469 43,817,954 10,425,758 605,273
2,594,738 1,240,805 (1,355,104) (1,1771)
551,032 3,696,076 3,145,172 128
465,943 868,699 - (402,756)
63,265 685 (57,502) 5,078
201,991 17 (202,186) (212)
- 6,472 9,925 3,453
696 - - 696
441 - - 441
15,906 6,878 3,603 12,631
37,891,481 49,637,586 11,969,666 223,561
526,606,417 486,935,967 - 39,670,450

oies Qe Ny

Rupees in ‘000 NP

444,962,281 398,581,461 (9,471,367) 36,909,453
41,771,205 49,348,050 7,440,081 (136,764)
1,802,589 1,173,106 (648,859) (19,376)
774,760 3,441,155 2,674,339 7,944
468,845 486,817 - (17,972)
25,726 19,005 (1,038) 5,683
30,510 17 - 30,493

5,601 - 8,935 14,536

2579 - - 2579

9,048 - - 9,048
25,964 1,693 (2,001) 22,180
44916,827 54,469,843 9,471,367 (81,649)
489,879,108 453,051,304 - 36,827,804
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43.6 Operational risk

43.7

The Bank operates in a controlled manner and operational risk is generally managed effectively. With the evolution
of operation risk management into a separate distinct discipline, the Bank's strategy is to further strengthen risk
management system along new industry standards.

The Bank's operational risk management strategy takes guidance from Basel - I, Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of Treadway Commission (COSO) publications, the SBP guidelines and standard industry practices. The operational
risk management manual addresses enterprise wide risk drivers inclusive of technology infrastructure, software
hardware and I.T. security.

The Bank's ORM framework includes Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk Indicators (KRIs), Operational Risk
Events Management, and Operational Risk reporting. The ORM unit engages with Bank's business / support units
and regularly collaborates in determining and reviewing the risks, and assessment of residual risk leading to improved
quality of control infrastructure and strengthening of the processes (sub processes) & management information.

The Bank’s business continuity plan includes risk management strategies to mitigate inherent risk and prevent
interruption of mission critical services caused by disaster event. The Bank’s operational risk management infrastructure
has been further strengthened through the establishment of a separate operational and risk control unit.

Operational risk - Disclosures Basel Il specific

The Bank uses Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for regulatory capital at risk calculation for operational risk. Under BIA
the capital charge for operational risk is a fixed percentage of average positive annual gross income of the Bank over
the past three years. Figures of capital charge of operation risk for the year is Rs. 2,504,149 thousand (2015: Rs. 2,315,818
thousand).
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44. KEY ISLAMIC BANKING OPERATIONS

44.1 The Bankis operating 25 (2015: 20) Islamic banking branches in Pakistan. The statement of financial position and profit
and loss account of these branches as at 31 December 2016 and for the year are as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ———
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 2,723,811 3,842,878
Balances with other banks - 10,450,000
Due from financial institutions 13,613,465 2,907,631
Investments 20,540,621 26,593,986
Islamic financing and related assets 445 8,429,751 7897487
Operating fixed assets 79,530 76,730
Deferred tax assets _ _
Other assets 1,414,567 3,460,038
46,801,745 55,228,750
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 304,581 228456
Due to financial institutions 860,517 966,307
Deposits and other accounts 43,154,644 52,067,283
- Current accounts 7,660,817 6,918,381
- Saving deposits 10,641,554 19,962,616
- Term deposits 16,415,145 15,390,612
- Others 111,661 84,674
~ Deposits from financial institutions - remunerative 8,321,653 9,709,697
- Deposits from financial institutions - non - remunerative 3,814 1303
Due to head office - -
Other liabilities 506,326 575,043
44,826,068 53,837,089
NET ASSETS 1,975,677 1,391,601
REPRESENTED BY
Islamic banking fund 1,402,615 1,002,619
Reserves - _
Unappropriated profit 191,936 363,777
1,594,551 1,366,396
Surplus on revaluation of assets 381,126 25,265
1,975,677 1,391,661
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44.2
44.3

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Profit / return on financing, investments and
placements earned

Profit / return on deposit & other dues expensed

Net spread earned

Provision against non performing financing
Provision for diminution in the value of investments
Provision for consumer financing ljarah

Bad debts written off directly

Net spread after provisions

OTHER INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Dividend income

Income from dealing in foreign currencies

Gain on sale / redemption of securities

Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
classified as 'held-for-trading’

Other income

Total other income

OTHER EXPENSES
Administrative expenses
Other provisions / write offs
Other charges

Total other expenses

Extra-ordinary / unusual items

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Remuneration to Shariah Advisor / Board
Charity Fund

Opening balance
Additions during the year

Received from customer on delayed payments
Payments / utilization during the year

Education

Health

Closing balance

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
2,752,564 2,723,686
(2,306,490) (2,116,829)
446,074 606,857

15,852 81,757
(15,852) (81,757)
430,222 525,100
40,746 33,188
23,661 14,829
66,907 13,803
44,146 61,681
175,460 123,501
605,682 648,601
413,464 284,803
282 21
(413,746) (284,824)
191,936 363,777
191,936 363,777
7,747 2,794

491 -

550 491
(148) -
(566) -
(714) -

327 491
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44.4

44.5

FINANCINGS / INVESTMENTS / RECEIVABLES

Murabaha financing
Murabaha receivable - gross
Less: Deferred Murabaha income
Advance against Murabaha

Provision against Murabaha Financing

ljarah
Asset held for ljarah
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
ljarah Financing
Less: Unearned Income
Advance against ljarah

Provision against ljarah Financing

Diminishing Musharakah
Diminishing Musharakah - gross
Less: Unrealised Income on Diminishing Musharakah
Advance against Diminishing Musharakah

Provision against Diminishing Musharakah

Export Refinance Murabaha
Export Refinance Murabaha receivable - gross
Less: Deferred Export Refinance Murabaha income
Advance against Murabaha IERF

Istisna Financing
Istisna Financing - gross
Less: Deferred Istisna Income
Advance against Istisna

Advance against Export Refinance Istisna
Export Refinance Istisna receivable - gross
Less: Deferred Export Refinance Istisna income
Advance against Istisna IERF

Al-Bai Financing

Al-Bai Goods

Istisna Goods

Working Capital Musharaka

Islamic Mode of Financing

Financings / investments / receivables
Assets/Inventories

Advances

Gross Islamic financing and related assets
Provision against financing and related assets

Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 ——
4,257,445 4,218,831
(125,683) (166,802)
109,071 79,898
4,240,833 4,131,927
(345,550 (330,980)
3,895,283 3,800,947
367,292 315,303
(115,788) (143,395)
- 55,480
- (9,089)
32,218 23,854
283,722 242,153
(23,796) (25,840)
259,926 216,313
3,477,592 3,204,826
(779,718) (497,059)
146,306 44,324
2,844,180 2,752,091
(3,327) -
2,840,853 2,752,091
95,142 129,691
(1,247) (2,317)
6,673 5899
100,568 133,273
44,645 46,429
(13,394) (13,929
146,308 102,275
177,559 134,775
13,226 -
(2,645) -
754,400 835,000
764,981 835,000
- 25,088
55,081 -
29,500 -
306,000 -
7,522,867 7,163,057
84,581 -
1,194,976 1,091,250
8,802,424 8,254,307
(372,673) (356,820)
8,429,751 7,897,487
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44.6 Following pools are maintained by the Bank's Islamic Banking Division (IBD)

- General pool - local currency and foreign currency
Deposit accepted in general pool local and foreign currencies is based on Modaraba. Profit distributed to depositors
as per pre-agreed weightages.

- Specific pool
Deposit accepted in special pools are based on Modaraba. Profit distributed to depositors as per pre-agreed profit
sharing ratio.

- Islamic Export Refinance Scheme musharakah pool
The IERS Pool caters to the 'Islamic Export Refinance' requirements based on the guidelines issued by the SBP.

44.6.1 Nature of general / specific pools local and foreign currencies
a) Consideration attached with risk and reward

- Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investments.

- Allfinancing proposals under process at various stages and likely to be extended in near future.

- Expected withdrawal of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base.

- Maturities of funds obtained under modaraba arrangement from head office, Islamic Banking
financial institutions.

- Element of risk associated with different kind of investments.

- Regulatory requirement.

- Shari'ah compliance.

b) Priority of utilization of funds
- Depositors' funds
- Equity funds
- Placement/ investments of other IBI
- Modaraba placement of HabibMetro (head office)
c) Weightages for distribution of profits
Profits are calculated on the basis of weightages assigned to different tiers and tenors (General pool). These
weightages are announced at the beginning of the period, while considering weightages emphasis shall be given
to the quantum, type and the period of risk assessed by applying following factors.
- Contracted period, nature and type of deposit / fund.
- Payment cycle of profit on such deposit / fund, i.e. monthly, quarterly or on maturity.

- Magnitude of risk.

Any change in profit sharing weightages of any category of deposit / fund providers shall be applicable from the
next month.

d) Identification and allocation of pool related income and expenditure:

The allocation of income and expenditure to different pools is being done based on pre-defined basis and accounting
principles as mentioned below:
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The direct expenditure shall be charged to respective pool, while indirect expenses including the establishment cost
shall be borne by HabibMetro 1BD as Mudarib. The direct expenses to be charged to the pool may include depreciation
of ijarah assets, insurance / takaful expenses of pool assets, stamp fee or documentation charges, brokerage fee for
purchase of securities, impairment / losses due to physical damages to specific assets in pools etc. However, this is not
an exhaustive list. HabibMetro IBD pool management framework and the respective pool creation memorandum may
identify and specify these and other similar expenses to be charged to the pool.

44.6.2 Islamic export refinance scheme musharakah pool

All the features and other details of this pool are in accordance with the SBP IERS Scheme and all circulars and instructions
issued from time to time in this regard.

44.7 Avenues | sectors of economy / business where modaraba based deposits have been deployed

Agriculture, foresting, hunting and fishing
Automobile and transportation equipment
Chemical and pharmaceuticals

Electronic and electrical appliances
Financial

Production and transmission of energy
Footwear and leather garments

Textile

Cement

Others

44.8 Parameters used for allocation of profit, charging of expenses and provisions etc.

a)

b)

c)

Basis of profit allocation

From January 01,2016 to
December 31,2016

Local Foreign
Currency  Currency

- Rabbul Maal 50% 10%
- Mudarib 50% 90%

Charging expenses

The direct expenses are charged to respective pool, while indirect expenses including the establishment costs are borned
by the Islamic Banking Division as Mudarib.

Provisions

Specific provision amounting to Rs. 15,852 thousand has been made during the year 2016.

44.9 Mudarib share (in amount and percentage

of distributable income)

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 %
Rabbul Maal 1,237,019 4423 1,168,534 4264
Mudarib 1,560,018 55.77 1,572,008 57.36
Distributable Income 2,797,037 100.00 2,740,542 100.00
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44.10 Amount and percentage of mudarib share transferred
to depositors through Hiba

2016 2015

Rupees in ‘000 ——

Mudarib share 1,560,018 1,572,008
Hiba 551,899 626,854
Hiba percentage of mudarib share 35.38% 39.88%

44.11 Profit rate earned and profit rate distributed to

45

46.

depositors during the year

2016 2015
%
Profit rate earned 6.32 7.35
Profit rate distributed to depositors 4.82 567
GENERAL
45.1 State Bank of Pakistan has issued BPRD Circular Letter No. 5 dated 29 February 2016 regarding the classification of Bai-
Muajjal with Government of Pakistan. Accordingly corresponding figures pertaining to "Bai-Muajjal with Government
of Pakistan" amounting to Rs 11,644,641 thousand have been reclassified from "Lendings to Financial Institutions" to
"Investments".
45.2 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the revised forms of annual financial statements of
the Banks'issued by the State Bank of Pakistan through its BSD Circular No. 04 dated 17 February 2006.
45.3 Non adjusting event after statement of financial position date
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 22 February 2017 has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 3.00 per share
amounting to Rs. 3,143,494 thousand (2015: final cash dividend of Rs. 2.00 per share amounting to Rs. 2,095,663 thousand)
for approval by the members of the Bank in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 22 February 2017 by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB SIRAJUDDIN AZIZ TARIQ IKRAM MOHOMED BASHIR
Chairman President & Director Director

102

Chief Executive Officer



HABIBMETRO

3|qe|IPAR 10U SDUIIRY,

8€€'C90'L 86€'CLS'L  19€'180'L  ¥SS'OV8'L

+YY WYY 950'89 92£'69 #01'99 719's6 997y zeo'or 8199ty 81700 palWITfueg PAUUN
- " - 0€7'SL - €vS'SL - 085'S - 008'sS paAwIT ueIshred Jo Auedwio) 1aqgny 19 2141 [e1aUD)
- * 9£9'71 79’171 12201 878881 00 0z€'se 0000 007'€S€E PINWIT PIIRYIO UeIsINed
wx s #20'95 8€T'LL £5K'0¢ 967'59 005 00£'%€ 0000SC  000'LbE P3NWI] WN3[0113d Uelsiyed
o YWY 765501 sLz'sel 199'8Y ¥85'(8 'y 0/6'TS 00Lvly  00L'6TS paNwi uopelodiod uawdofaAsQ seo pue |10
- +y - 890'/1 - £68'07 - 009'Z€ - 000'9Z€ paNWIT Jamod 1eysIN
- AvAYs - 80v'vL - 8006/ - 005501 - 0005501 UeIsiyed JOjueg [euolen
vy vY LE€ SE1'sT 99¢ veL'se 08 0S¥'ZS 0008 005'77S PSNWIT fueg UBZIIN
YWY VYWY PSE0L ¥S€'0L 7€0'LS 9579 0£9'7 00£'9Z 000697  000'€97 panwiIyueg gOW
wx . 07561 2950y 11881 9588t 08¢ 0v9's 000'8€ 00%'9S paYIWIT 1UBW) AN
+PY WY p80L fl'sL 7£9'¢8 0£T'vL szeol 00Z'%6 005'7€0'L  000'TH6 panwr Auedwio) Jsmog nppy 10y
HY WY 72099 L18'€L ££5'501 €8€S1LL 98701 EYP'E6 S79'870'L  STY'YE6 panwiI Auedwio) Jamod gnH
- o - 67E'67 - 661'€E - 0L0'S - 001'0S PaNWIT (UeIsiNed) 18D Sefly epuoH
- - - 996'€ 1 - 26881 - 0S¥'9L - 00591 paIWIT $1ULDLGNT Yd3-H
YWY WYY 06071 265’y 0¥ £60'7S 0zL 96/'61 096'1LL 096'£61 panwi yueg qigeH
wx vv 818w/ 818w/ 9718/ 71169 7799 077'99 002799 007799 panwi] Auedwio) siazjiue4 1ineq
wx VY vr/'0L 0LE'LY 65/'18 SE6'SY 025's1 00£'68 000755'L 000268 PaNWIT WISeD ulg s1azl|1a4 Ined
W WY 66v6h cTe'sL 698'9/ S8Y'/8 S8l/L 0S1'2€T 005'8L/'L  00S'LLET panwr Auedwio) s1azijia4 ewired
- VY - 86559 - 07£'89 - 005001 - 0005001 paNWIT 49z1]11494 01bu3
+v +y 6.0'6 626'L1 680'6 L0L'SL 029 081L'8 00079 008'L8 palwiI spoo4 0ibug
wx - 90505 799'vL €S/ £57'96 050'S 005t 000'50S  000'SEY pajw Auedwio? Juawis) Ueyy 9 °q
v v 6.9y 6579 86691 L8€'66 414 901'£S 091'1ZS  090°LLS panwi Auedwio) swa) jeiey)
vy vY ¥9C'L€ L6y v¥8'6¢ €91'69 Sz8'el 00Z'z81L 005'78¢'L  000'7T8'L PaNWIT Yele)ly yueg
+WY WY G766 87/'96 €05'56 ¥00'zEL 156'7C vLL'sTT LEL'S6TT  LEL'LET'T palWIT gigeH Ty yueg
- v €951/ 295'LL 96578 195'16 0S¢ 005'L€1 000'G/E'L  000'SLE'L PaLIWIT 3315 I[2IY
+Y YWY 98l'E/ 11999 97€£'09 0rF'69 00¥'9 057'8S 0000v9 005785 panwi yueg payy
000, Ut s9adny yoea-/01 sy
buney 150D anje e anjea dn pied JO saieys Jo ‘ON
SL0z 910z 5102 9107 5107 9107 5102 9107 5107 9107

a31SI7- STUVHS AYVNIQYO dN-Aivd AT1Nd "¢
‘wnuue Jad (90071 01 %S/'8:5107) %007 L 01 %00/ U9aMmIaq buibuel s3181 152421U1 YUIM $1eIA 0| 01 € J0 potad A1iniew e aAeY S31UND3S 353U |

SANOS9 LNJNLSIANI NVLISIMVd T
‘wnuue 12d (9058 01 %659 :5107) %3T9 01 %/8'S Usamiag Bujbuel pjaiA yum 1eak | Jo ponad Alun1ew e aAeY S3LND3S 353y |

STTIE AYNSYIYUL LIV '}
SININILVLS TVIONVNI4 A3LVAITOSNOINN 3FHL 40 #°L1 3LON NI Ol A3HI43Y SV .l FUNXINNY

103



3|ge|ieAe 10U sBUfIRY,,

£66'8¢6'1 €0£'880'C 8LL'Te6'L 978'901°C

¥ *x 759'c8 8496'C8 759'C8 655'C8 000y 000y (Il - PSHWIT WO2sI2] [[BD) PHOM
+v v 000'05¢ 006'6%C 0S677¢ 86€'7ST 000'0S 000'0S [I - paHITUeg ISUOS
+V v 088’661 008’661 188,61 8/0'0C 0000 000°0Y [ - pariwirTueg giN
vyy YWY 000'000'1 000'000'L 000'000°1 005'200°L 00001 000°0L (42e9 /000001 SY D4L) PaUWITHuUEg GIgeH
vy o W (81611 - 706’611 - 000'7¢ - [en1sdiag - pauwI Jazi|ied 01bug
vy WY v1/'9¢ 6699€ 18€'/¢ 099'L€ 0S¢’z 05€'L A\ - PRHWIT Yeejly yueg
- Vv - 916’69 - S8L'ELT - 000'%S A\ - PHWIT giqeH Ty yueg
A A 006’67 008'6t7C 05€'67C oYY ST 00005 00005 A\~ Pl Ueg LIRYSY
000, Ul s9adny -

yoes -/000°G sy J0

buney 150D SN[eA 1e $31II93 O ON

Sl0C  9l0c Sl0¢ 910¢ SL0¢ 910¢ SL0¢ 910¢

a3alLsit- S3LvOIIdILd3D IONVNId N43L 'S
3|Ge|IeAR 10U SPUIRY s
166901
xx  HPUBIGQEIT PINCD IN - 710¢ 4oqWeoed L€ 9061 0€901 974 - (L4IMNS) Joysued] puny

yueg Ja1U| SPIM PO 104 191205
%% PUES PIWYY UBMZIY U\ GLOC Joquieded L ¢ cee8l 000's€ 000'005'€ %/9Y PRI [nyexeL Ajiwe4 poome(
*x UISYOW Sebe "W N 7107 12qws23Q L€ - 000'0S 000'000°G %L patWIT uabo) YHA
» uonepinbi| Japun - - 19¢'1 1 88091l %97'S P31/ 33)UeIeND dURUI{ UOdX3 Uelsieq

—— 000, Ul s9adny ——

SJUBWIILIS
[epueuly JUSWISaAU

Buies BAIINIEXT JBIYD) paupne Joanjea pJay saJeys Buipjoy

upan Jo awep uo paseg dnyeaig 150) josaquiny 4o abeuadiad

A3LSITINN - STAVHS AUVNIQYHO dN-dIvd AT1Nd ¥

104



HABIBMETRO

S0£'0ry 878'rLE
- - 00005 000'0S 00001 00001
. - 2L, 20L'L 00001 00001
Al VY 00/'6¥1 0S8'vL 0000€ 000°0€
- AT 0787/ 0/8'6Y 000'G1 000'S1
. - SP6'9EL 89T'LLL LIY'LT LLY'LT
o - gel'le 8el'lT 00001 000°0L
000, Ul seadny —
buney 1509 ydea -/000'S 'Sy 4O
$91eD141148D JO "ON
S10¢T 9107 S10T 9107 SL0z 9102
L1004 Ajenuue [wss sdq 091 snjd 4Ogi syruow 9
€z-len-1e  Ajjenuue jwas sdq G L snjd 4ogi syruow 9
ce-unr6L Ajenuue juisg sdq G 1 snjd yOg sypuow 9
§z-23@-1¢  Ajlenuue jwas sdq 05 snid 4ogi syruow 9
81-AON-8L  Ajjenuue jwas sdq 0/ 1 snjd 4Ogi syauow 9
1C-ge4-07  Ajlenuue 1was sdq Gz 1 snjd yogi sypuow 9
l¢-das-0¢  Ajlenuue 1was sdq G/ snjd gogh syruow 9
l¢-des-0¢  Ajlenuue jwas sdq 0L snjd 4OgN syruow 9
alep
fumen JuswAey d1el uodnod

9|qe|IeAR JOU SDUIRY, 4

(epeQ pezyeys U\ :2AINJ9XT JaIYD)
[ - PoHWIT uUeg PaiolieyD) plepuels

(IRIUY UBWINEN S Al :DAIINDXT Ja1YD)
pa1wi] uonelodio?) buises A1Ndag

(eSUY UBLLION I :9AIIN23XT Ja1YD)
lIl - pauwIT yueg |esAed

(emleg JIav JA :9AIINIXT JBIYD)
Al - P3WIN Yejejly ueg

(SNUNA pleUN[ pPRWILLIBYNIA A 1012341 Buibeuey)
pa1WI uonelodio?) SUIIY [PUONPUIDIU| URISPR]

(JeaY ZIBAID UBI A :DAINISXT Ja1YD)
PRIWIT (31BAIJ) SDLISNPU| SDIUCIIIS[T P3|y MON

Q3LSITINN - ST1VIIdIL43D JONVNIA WH3 L

[II'- PSNWIT WO9|9] [[€D PUOM

[ - poHWIT uUeg 19UOS

Il - pawI] yueg giN

(42e2-/000°001 S D41) pauwITjueg qigeH
len1adiad - pa1iwr Jazi|iie4 01bug

A\ - PSHWIT Yeje)y fueg

A\ - PONWIT qIqeH Ty yueg

A= oUW UEY LIBXSY

'SMO||04 SB 1B S21LDHIHDD SdURUY W) Pa1S)| 4O siendied IaYl0  L°g

105



*%

*%

880'0C9'CL  v6T'TYS'8L

98C%9¢ 0£5'€0€

00058 000'S8

. % 199911 €€€'8S 0000/ 000'0Z
. . 0056 005'6 006'l 006'L
. . €581 00€'8€ 0000¢  0000Z
vv VY 000'00C 000'00C 16€'/1 000°0%
% * $59'G¢ - 000’17 -
+y +y ¥S1'08¢ ¥19'92¢ w660l Tv6'60L
s % - 00000001 - 000000
. . 661'188°C  08L'v/8'€ 000045 000'0/L
. . 685'886 999'015°€ 00000 00000
. *x 000’197/ - 007'CSY'L -
. . 00526 005"ty 0000z 000'0Z
s % 00%'0€ - 00091 -
% '/ S8TYLT 1£5'8L1 0S¢ 0SC
000, Ui saadny —
Buney 150 4283 -/000’S 'Sy JO
$91eD1J1113D JO 'ON
510¢ 910 $10C 910z 510¢ 9107
ce-unr-6¢ Ajlenuue jwss sdq G/ snid 4ogi syiuow 9
2c-uer-8e Alyauopy wnuue Jad 949 91el Y3 1e paxi4
£1-33Q-LC Ajlenuue 1wss sdq Gz snjd YogdIy syiuow 9
£1-230-¢ Ajlenuue jwss sdqg 05z snjd Yogiy syruow 9
0C-924-61 Allenuue 1was sdq g8 snjd YOgIy syruow 9
JARCEERA! Ap2rend sdq G/ snjd YogdIy syuow ¢
a1ep Auniepy JusWAey diel uodno)

9|qe|IeAR 10U 1B SDUMBY, 4

ONSS| PIE - SPUOG MINS YJdVM
ONSS| PU - SPUOG AMNS VA4V
P3IUWIT S||1|A ABISOH S 931y |
PINWIT 9PIXO 124 BIENS
UO[RIIUNWIWOY) IGOI URISPIRd

| - PRUWIT USWS)) Jea 3jdeyy
panwI] Abojouyda] 1amod A1aqi
3NSS| Y1/ -AMANS Yelel] 0O
3NSS| A9 -3nyNS yeuel] 409
ANSS| LIS | -4nyNS yedel] 409
3ANSS| Yy | -AMiNS Yelel] oo
pajWIT Spoo4 0ibu3

PaNWIT (31RAL) 8916 I[21WY
(42e2-/000°000 L SH IMANS) PaliwIT yueg exeieg-|y

SANO4 ANV S31VIIdILEED MNMNS

(| paaWIn Sueg paislieyd piepuels
palwi uonelodiod Buisea A1INdag

lIl pauWIT yueg [esAed
Al pa3WIT Yeled-|y yueg

pa11WIT] uoneiodiod) saully [eUoReUISIU| URISIe]

Pa1WIT (31BALd) S9LISNPU| SDIUCIID(T P3|y MON

‘SMO||0} Sk aJe S=o1ed1j119d 90ukUl) Wial palsijun JO mk_m_ju_th PY10 1L'9

106



HABIBMETRO

876'T6€C
v18'9LS
Ev8's6l
LT9'V10'E

0£T'6.6
009'CLE
(474 4°T4
€€8'8YY
€81'086

LSL'LT9'LL

S)UM JO JSqWNN

910¢

PUN4>201S 1gH

| - pun4 eAewies WN¥ayeISNiA 1gH

pUN4 UOIRIO||Y 19SSy dIwe|s| TgH

pun4 sbuines peoy Jebupunyd yINgG

pun{ swodu| sepy

3WAYIS PIBIA YBIH Liedisy

pUN4 SWODU| 3AISSIBBY DJWie|S| UdsWy-|y
puUN4 UBISISA0S JIWE|S| US|y

puUN4 193/ 3D01S Sepy

pun4 Auunuoddo ayy

puN4 awodu| anIssa1bby Yy

|| - pun{ uoneasasald [edidulid d1we(s| 19y
PUN4>201S 1gv

pun4 awodu| 19y

SANN4 TvNLNN AN3 N3dO

‘SUIUOW XIS 3X2U Joj a|gedijdde 199ys $I91NaJ U0 Paseq aJe sa1el 953y 4

. *% - 000'00€ - 8t71'50€ -
- *x 00005 00005 159'0S €26'vS ¥95'c61
- *% - 000'0¢ - £69'LT -
P-vvy  (I+v - 000'S¢ - Sot'ST -
(v (3)-vv 000'00¢ - 60£%0¢ - 708's8¢
. NV 000'00C 000°00L  00l'Soz  6LL'z0lL 1£8'616'1
($-vv (H)+g99 000'SY 000'S¢ 000'SY LE6'LE S00'Liry
Ese  (§-vy 00005 - 00005 - YEC'98Y
Jes g *x% 000'0S 000°0SL  790'8¥ £€T0LL 8/%'901
(999  Jeisy 00005 00005 €eo'lL SLO'LS 76716
¢dd  (H)+ad9 000001 000'0S LE0'00L  tbT'Ts 909,96
o *% 0000 - SC6'9 - LSYTHTy
DV *% 000'08 00000 S¥S'LOL  £/6LEE £00'599'/
WV 000'00€ - £98'70¢ - 7S6'sCl'6C
000, U saadny
Buney 150D an|eA 19ssy 19N
S10C 910 SL0z 910z sL0z 910 S1L0C
1712071 Ajlenuue 1wss sda 001 snjd YOgI supuow 9
LL-INf-¢L Ajlenuue jwss sdq Gz sNUIW YOgGIM Symuow 9
£1-bny-¢ Ajjenuue jwsgs sdq Gze snjd Yogiy syruow 9
0C-994-61 Ajsuend sdg oL L snid YogIy syruow ¢
61-22Q-C¢ Au21enp sdqg 01z snid YOgIy syiuow ¢
81-29Q-¢ e ElTe) sdq o001 snid ogp sypuow ¢
LZ-1eN-81 Aj1enp sdq 00€ snjd YOgIy syruow ¢
61-094-G1 Aj[enuue |was wnuue Jad 9509 91eJ Y3 18 paxI4
81-29(-81 Ajlenuue jwas sdq G snulw s|jig | Syruow 9
£1-Unf-G¢ Ajjenuue jwiss sdg 00 snuiw s|jig | syiuow 9
9l-IeN-8C Ajjlenuue [wag sdg o€ snuiw s|jig 1 Syauow 9
/1-Uef-¢| Ajjenuue jwag sdq 69 sn|d 4Ogpy syruow 9
91-2900-6 Ap21end sdq 05z snid ogp syruow ¢
¢-des-97 Ajlenuue jwss sdq Gz snjd Yogiy sypuow 9
dlep Auniep JusWAeq d1el uodno)

3NSS| PIE - SPUOG NN YAdYM
3NSs| U - SPUOG NN YAdYM
paNWIT S|l AIDISOH Je1s a1y |
PaNWIT 9PIXO 13d LIRS

P3UWIT UOARDIUNWILIOD) 3[IGON URIS)ed

| - PRUWIT JUSWD) Jea a|dey

pa1jw] ABojouyds] Jamod A1aq

aNSS| Y3/ 1 - 3nnS Yelel] Joo
ANSS| LI9L - 3N3NS yesel] JOo
ANSS| YISL - 3NYNS yesel] Joo
aNSS| Uy | - ANNS Yeuel] JOO

P91IWIT SPOOH 01bUT
PRUUWIT (318AL) [991S I[2IWY

(42e9 -/000°000' L SY AMANS) Parill] ueg exeseg-y

'SMOJ|0} SB 2JB SPUOg / S1LI11IDD) YNYNS JO siejndiied 1DYi0 L'

107



"aleys 4ad (01 Sy PUB #7171 | 'SY :S107) A]9ARDadSal O] Sy PUB S| | 'Sy 01 Parunowe 9| 0g J2quIad3 | € JO Se SIUSWSIRIS [BIDURUL S1 UO Paseq (Sa1IpIsgns)
PaYWIT (91eAL) Auedwo)) Juswabeueryy eygelepoyy ueljodosiy gigeH pue paiul] S92IAISS [eIDURUI{ U |0doISA qIgeH JO 21eys Aleulplo Jad anjea dn-yealg

607911 G89'61lY ¥£5'86¢ SYo'vLYy
*x o 918'l¢ 918'L€ ¥e6'le £59'6¢ 00S'€/6 005'€26
- . £6578¢ 698'/8¢ 009'9/€ 166'v8¢ €€8'/60'SE  €£8/60'SE
000, Ul s9adny
buney 150D anjep19yley S1un jo "oN
510z 910T SlLoz 910t Sloz 910T 510z 910C
[7T'CES'S LS/'806'S /95'6C/'S  LTTYITY
(y)+999

= ($+9dd 8ISyl - 986'8¥ | - 900'85/'L -

o * 098's7 1L 000'00%  €0/'SSL 4 WAS 2 122'8/5'C  TEL'L8S'S

*x #% 000'5T - ¥68'6C - ¥56'96C -

wx *% Ydyas - LET'sh - €/7'66¢ -

(H+vY %% 00022 000'7T z10'1e LTY'9T £60'581 8v8'9LC

*x (H+vv ¥//'9/1 - Y06'L/1 - 6E6'CEL -

o *% 00001 00001 66501 8TS'rL [¥8'E0L 510901

- (P+v £65'596 L0S'9Sy  8ST'T8S  £LS'6hP SZ8LIY'S  6SS'6LY'Y

- #% - 000°SL - 08191 - €95'€S1

- Jeis-z - 000'ST - 9St'LT - So¢'/0p
sy +ZIANY - 000°001 - 206'701 - TTE'861L
s g #% 000001 - §8/'sel - 1S0'6£€'8 -

- *% S0¥ 10k 6V0'v0L  YEL'9SY  €ST'TSL 6E1°0/1'SE €25'096'Th
(9)-v *% - ¥55'66 - LG8LEL - YE8'Y6E6
vy (v 000005 000'00C  ¥¥6'61S 180°20¢ [19'/599F 9£5'8T/'8L
v  PvvY 000058 - 000'058 - SPP'TSE9L -

% (3)-v 000058 - 091'058 - G8¥'051'91 -

- *% 00t'9¢¢ 09T'€SOv  /86'CST  86L'ThY So5'8rl's 047’816’

*x (I+v - 00005 - 0£0'LS - 99¢’ L6

- %% 080'8C v2e'0T 16£'0€ vE8'LT 18€'85¢C SL0'/8L
leig ¢ - - 00005 - £90'89 - 965'09%

- Jels ¢ €90'c0€ €90'€0€  099'79C 191'99¢ 0€8'€G5'T 9€8'€6S'T

000, Ul s9adny
Buney 150D anjeA 19ssy 19N Sjun Jo Jsquiny
510z 910C S10¢ 910T S0z 910C S0z 910z

|qe|IeAR 10U SBU1RY 4

pun4 yimois JiDld
13y A uswiog

SANN4 TvNLNN AN3 3SOT1D

pUN4 SWODU| %9 YIMOID) paiun
puny 3201S psiun

puNn{ aWodU| JJwels| 19N

puny Uokes0||y 195y 1dN

puUN4 19SSy [N\ J163141G SNWlId
pun{ anasay Ajleg snwiid

pun4 Anb3 anjea Tl

pun4 swodu| JNId

pun4 UoHESO| | 1955 IAId

puUN4 UONRIO||Y 135Sy brIURAPY UBWQ) Yed
1SNJ| JUSWIISSAU| [EUOIIEN
pun419ssy NN v4¥N
pun43201S v4¥YN

pun4 ABJau3 JIWe|s| V4¥N

pun4 AunuoddQ swodu| Y4¥N
puUN4 UBIIBA0S URZI3|N

pUN4 SWODU| DJWe|S| UPZIS|\
pun4 32015 ueisied gon

pUN4 SWODU| UOSHeT

pun{ 19yiepy padoPAS( UOIEIO||Y 1955y UOSHeT]
pun4 [eyded sbieq sr

pun4 AINb3 uosye’

108



HABIBMETRO

Areypneyd (-9€/68%0-C0CS€
PaRUEM JIUY WY Yeleq S 2I0Ue7 ‘PeOY e
pawiyy -5/918%S-207S¢E '9SNOH efeyuioodey '~z |
8901 44 ore - (890G 44 SLL'L (VAR 1N Aeypneyd TPV IN eUliRyd eojeZZyY |
L-1¥/6//7-70TSE
Yeys ueiul| Yeys prener
1-9€8¢¥50-¢0¢S¢E
JlueH pneg pnes peye4 I
6-GECLEY8-C0CSE
Jluey pneg pnes pees I a104e7
Jluey G-6¥7C€961-C0CSE 'PeOY IYSIN-ES
0¥8 - 078 - SYELL - 0r8 G0591 beys| pewweyniy JlueH pnes iy P (IAd) SauIsnpu s90yS 03sId 3
‘IydelIeY ‘lezeg e|por
[eWOOA Ji1eT [NPQY m_ywﬂmmmmmm%mm 211U9)) 3peI | BIPIS ‘707 # UNS
’ 199115 20134 "W 'L €/9-Y W
9-1591/Z1-107¢y Aueduio) Jadeiq 7
979'C 6651 [90'L - 979'c¢  |6SS'L v€L'T €ee'8e J11e77 pOOSey POOSe| BU9H "SI Auedwo) Bulpes| sew|y 4
bmcwc,q m-@mmmmmo-wovmm
Jeyzy efemeyy | pawyy |Ipy efemeyy R YO
1oAY PRWWRYNN | /-€675768-50YLE 3SNOH efemeyy| 1004151 ‘¢
11T - Lt v - |pIgT |58l efemeyy paWyy Jeyzy efemey siayioig leapy | L
000, U s3adny
4! [T 01 6 g z _ 9 S v € 4 I
papiroid jerop | sy | GNAMEW edisypg
0-Ud1ILIM Ul (I9quinN DIN / JIND Yiim) .
LCT st e iy 1eak 3 Jo mw_ww_ﬂm_ﬁ e SpueGnH /Sioiey | SIOPRIP siavited 341 o ssalppe pue aueN o
oy | /1l | sanyjiqel| BuipueIsING _ \ /SIBNPIAIPUL J0 SWeN

910¢ ¥39IN303A 1€ A3AN3 JVIA FHL ONI”NA Ad3AIAOdd
IA09YV HO -/000°00S "S¥ 40 431713 TVIONVNIA ¥3HLO ANV 3O SNVO1 440-NILLIMM ONIMOHS LNIWILVLS

SIN3IN3LVLS TVIONVNI4 d3LVAITOSNOONN FHL 40 8°C1L 310N NI Ol d3¥d343d SV .l FANXIANNY

109



L-LLELESL-LOECY

1yoesey ‘YHA A-a5eyd
'DeOY 35IN0D) JJ0D | /-6

vr'6s - - vev'es  |CeC'es - - [4Y44’] wiyey [npay utessnH pewdeyniy SOUISNPUL Y N Ll
‘IydeIRY,
'SHD3d ‘¢/S/¥SL 6 ON 990
£-8€1678-107CF ‘Buip|ing aped.y eulpeyy
LL6'L |LL6'L - - |z197 - |LL6'] 5€9 biyn] pewweyniy bynL zety I\ sjpieddy ejeisniy | 0L
‘Peqejesieq
PeyslY £-5020££0-00L €€ "0 “ON 9SNOH 'Peoy XI[el
L26'SC |9l |SLELL - P79y |T19%L  [SLELL  |0CS0C Iye[3 poosbepy I4e[3 Joolsey saslidiziug ueqedeyy 6
€-8C5C0St-10Ccy
eLNS uooieH eUNS Jluny ‘Jy2eIRY ‘Y-UOISUSIXT
9-87/18/¥-10CCy "L-eWRYPS Y'Y '98¢-A
A4S 6l 8¢ - Y8l 6l vev'l 76¢ euUNS JIuUniy oueg Jesney BUNSJIUNIA ‘N i Oueg Jesney 8
‘PeqRWeS| '¢-04
lemuy 6-0760882-101 19 'peOY ejebie ‘BT # H :9dUapISaYy
85C'C 857'C - - 857'/1 19/ - L6V'T1 pIysInyy paAs seqqy Yyinied paAs SUORN|OS Ssaulsng oANRAOUUY| VA
€-¢616551-00¢S€
I wissey I WISSey) uelul| I
6-€01¢r/9-00¢5¢
J001RYD) |y UBSSRH | 10018y H WILeY I ‘Iy2eIRY AUOJOD) gId J1BaN
S-¥5/989¢-107T ‘Auojod pegeuduy - /61
OlL/'S/L [C08%8  [£€9'8€ /LTS |9LT09C [C08Y8  |L€9'QE  |//L'9EL | J0OIRYD Iy UesseH 1003_YD) I 1Y N PITSINA 9|1IXa] USPjOD) 9
6-/815808-10¢¢y . .
elemuebeleg elemuliebeleg [42RJR) " "ON SWRYS YA
712y paklew Al peWWRYNIA I D/5T-Y ON-H
§-G/ 1S500Z-102TY sasudiaig 201
elemuuebeleg elemuiebeleg SOIIPOWO) [GOIS
v6'19¢ - |0S908  |p/C18C |68£'509 - 05908  |6€1'SCS bijey bijey qeAfe I dnoio [eqo|9 S
000, ul s9adny
4] Ll 0l 6 8 L . 9 S 4 € 4 l
opinoid n-yiew
- p %_w__e tmﬂﬂwﬁs 0-usmum [eJOL | SBYO | /isaieyyy | IRAPUMd aweN cmom_ﬁuuﬂ w_rz\\m wummﬁ_é Jomouiog o
|epueUL prsscesey ledipug J1eak ayy jo bujuuibaq e S, pueqsny / s,Jayyeq \m_m:v_\,._ccco aweN 93 JO SSaIppe pue dweN 'S

1PY10

saniqel buipueisino




HABIBMETRO

L-7C/89%5-000¢r

‘Iydeley ‘1bueIOy
'B3lY [_LISNPU[ [DURIOY
¢ 101396 'S9 | ON 10/d

90L's  |wse 4353 - oosTl |wse 9/09 |99 100¥eYS |Npqy pewes snpay sasudioiug pewes | /1
[Y¥S5/¥50-000CY
UBL) Jney [npay UBL jney pees
6-1/95¢0L-10¢€¢y QBN SEINENRS
ueyy jney [npqy UBYY Jney Wies(es KemybiH 12dnS “T1T'S ‘66
Uey G-€¢E6750-000¢r PI10OAd)
0/8%L  |0/87L - - 0/8%6F |€86'SL  [29F 14433 J003eYS [Npqy UBLM Jney [npqy uopeiodio) dj1ixa] yosees | 9|
1yoeiey 'vHA
6088701 L-10€Cy ‘N-958Ud '9-aue IzI9 ‘¢// |
JAVAY - |Z1L9 - |1 - |eelt v8Y'e Wweyy Jejez lejez ueysy IN Soluosds[g Ueyay | Gl
‘IyoeJey) ‘ueyng ndi|
eleMye|ly L-10€SP0S-10CCy ‘pegejoogbe ‘e
0¢568 - 660y |LCY'Sh  |0CS6EL - 6607y | LTV'S6 pawyy tben IADEN POOSBI I [oseddy obnsald | ¥l
6-9565190-10¢Cy ) \
1ueyyays yoeley 1S 9/
41374 - 41374 - ARG - 2L0'/C |00L'S9 Wwiey [npay [lRWIS] pewiweyniy sasHdIU7 WadeN el
0-SS/G1¢o9-10¢cy
URLLIYRY IN BIZ I UBWYRY BURYRY ‘SIN
€-9¥8508/-10¢cy
UBWIYY AN HIZ U ueWysy pleunfiIin 1563 1ydeIey
€-69/006/-10¢cy 'SHOWM “ied ||IH JeaN ‘€€ -y
Lh'C ol6 4! - L'y 916 4T44 €6l'L eAyeA puweyniy | - uewySy 4N HlIZ I PYSIIA 313X3L Jooudilepm d'N Cl
000, ul s9adny
4] Ll 0l 6 8 L . 9 S 4 € 4 l
papinoid NBW | 1o
oy | I tm%ﬂwﬁ_; o-uspum|__ot | PO | /aseieuy | 1EERIN awen ALQMMMWwwz\ﬂwummﬁ_gv 1oMmoLog N
|epueul prsscesy ledipug Jeak ayy jo bujuuibaq e s, pueqsny / s,Jayyeq \m_m:v_\,._ccco aweN 93 JO SSaIppe pue dweN 'S

1PY10

saniiqel buipueisino




v79'£9€'T|TTE'80T |vEL'6V8 |881°0LEL{969°GST'E[8EE'OLT (659998 |669'8L1'T
Iyoeiey
S-€5/T790-L0ET 31IS 7D ON10id
€8/°0¢ 059G €s’s 109'6 €8/°0¢  |059'S €5’ 10961 | eibeqJenes npay eibeq Jenes Jisy sasudialu3 YUom oM | 7Z
0eoy Yeuulr '
6-6518050-000¢Y 1B BRMUIYD0D) ‘67
epbue booue4 epbuer |IgeN JN DI () S0Ig 79 JNSPA PRUILIBOIN
G-0£0€c/L1-100¢y
epbuer Jnsnj a1e epbuer bOOIRJIN | ey ‘Baiy ‘g4 'b09E | ON X0g O
6-5518050-000¢F 13 IyDeiey| ‘peoy Leuulr N
epbuer boosey epbuer [IGeN JN 19BN\ BlEMUIYD0)D) 67
§-000%7598-000¢t pauwWI (Ad)
epbue zIeAldd 9187 | epbuer yseweyy I S|l Bulydea|g 19 BuIRAQ JnSnA
boouey ¢-061C661-10VCY
peUIWeYNy | PeZYRYS PRUILBYOIA JIA 1ydeJey| ‘ealy pu|
S-0£0€Z/11-1002Y IUDeIE) YLION 'G/C1 935 7€ 10|
0SETLSL|9¥6'Ey (V18919 |06S'158 |6EETLLL [OV6'Er  |#18OLO |6£5LS0'L | epbuer jnsnA 1e] epbue boose4 I pauWI (Ad) Siuswuen qeuez | |z
Iyoeley YLoN
ueyy S-0E9P205-L0LTY '3U0Z134jng 101935 €01 1
LEL LEL - - LEL] 961 - 186 pasweH JssieD | Ueyy| pasweH Jodjy I somny Jejez 1 0¢
G-C8916/1-10¢Ecy
UBLM 1Y BZIIN - [UBY) |y URIWIRY BZIIA TN
€-5L9/L1-10€Ty 142eIR) ‘UOYID '§ 12019 '¢6-0
0€L'9S  |00/'VE  |6C80L  [LO90L |00L'L6 |00/%E  |6C80L  [L/S'SY  |PWYY CIGeH NPAY|  QIGeH PleAel N IW P17 (Ad) sauasnpujuolun | 61
L-1£0£9/6-000CY \ ‘ LPEIE
eIy 1eybnyd B3IV ‘g4 0142019 0vC-D
008'l 008'l - - |008'lT  |8SlT vELY 806 [/eybsy peLuweyniy| Jamuy peuwueyniy I auois Injeubls | gl
000, ul s9adny
4] Ll 0l 6 8 L . 9 S 4 € 4 l
papinoid NBW | 1o
oy | I tm%vﬂwﬁ_; o-uspum|__t | PO | /aseieuy | IEEPI aweN ALQMMMWwwz\ﬂwummﬁ_gv 19Moog N
|eueuly oty [edpuLd 1eak ay3 jo buluuibaq 1e Ss,pueqsny / sJayie4 \m_m:v_\,._chomEmz 9y} JO SSaIppe pue sweN 'S

1PY10

saniiqel buipueisino




HABIBMETRO

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS - CDC AND PHYSICAL

AS ON 31 DECEMBER 2016

Number of Size of shareholding Total

shareholders Rs. 10 each shares held
354 1 - 100 8,405
330 101 - 500 110,438
289 501 - 1,000 249,923
753 1,001 - 5,000 2,009,272
278 5,001 - 10,000 2,135,447
333 10,001 - 15,000 4,064,134
70 15,001 - 20,000 1,294,111
67 20,001 - 25,000 1,598,637
30 25,001 - 30,000 839,841
16 30,001 - 35,000 525,107
36 35,001 - 40,000 1,371,690
48 40,001 - 50,000 2,249,420
31 50,001 — 60,000 1,676,808
36 60,001 - 80,000 2,531,372
30 80,001 - 100,000 2,751,571
46 100,001 - 150,000 5,662,340
29 150,001 - 200,000 5,136,079
21 200,001 - 250,000 4,685,209
39 250,001 - 500,000 14,691,048
39 500,001 - 1,000,000 27,465,819
15 1,010,001 - 1,450,000 17,245,984
9 1,510,001 - 2,000,000 15,128,082
19 2,020,001 - 2,860,000 44,307,698
9 3,055,001 - 4,500,000 33,535,495
11 5,010,001 - 9,845,000 77,673,571
11 9,995,001 - 49,415,000 244,489,925
1 534,390,001 - 534,395,000 534,394,054
2950 1,047,831,480




COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC AND PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDINGS

AS ON 31 DECEMBER 2016

Categories of Shareholders Sll:l:rr:rt\) sll;i:frs é\lhuan:et;elz eolfi (%)

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 1 1,612,524 0.15
Mr. Ali S. Habib 1 1,510,994 0.14
Mr. Mohomed Bashir 1 16,340,985 1.56
Mr. Muhammad H. Habib 1 2,069,454 0.20
Mr. Sohail Hasan 1 500 0.00
Mr. Tarig lkram 1 600 0.00
Mr. Sirajuddin Aziz 1 1,000 0.00
Mrs. Farah Fatimah Muhammad H. Habib 1 1,037,157 0.10
Mrs. Munizeh Ali Habib 1 604,374 0.06
Mrs. Sayeda Mohamedali R. Habib 1 805,065 0.08
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
Habib Bank AG Zurich 1 534,394,054 51.00
Habib Insurance Company Limited 2 3,000,424 0.29
Executives 5 692,636 0.07
Public sector companies and corporations 7 13,327,386 1.27
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking

finance companies, insurance companies, takaful, modarabas

and pension funds 20 62,716,012 5.99
Mutual Funds
CDC - Trustee MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund ] 3,060,000 0.29
MCBFSL - Trustee JS Value Fund 1 70,000 0.01
CDC - Trustee Atlas Stock Market Fund 1 1,884,000 0.18
CDC -Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund 1 105,568 0.01
CDC - Trustee APF-Equity sub-Fund 1 245,000 0.02
CDC - Trustee MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund 1 750,000 0.07
CDC - Trustee NIT-Equity Market Opportunity Fund 1 316,000 0.03
CDC -Trustee PICIC Stock Fund 1 120,000 0.01
CDC - Trustee HBL PF Equity sub-Fund 1 55,000 0.01
CDC -Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 1 49,412,107 472




HABIBMETRO

. Number of Number of
Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares held (%)
General Public
a. Local 2781 153,436,914 14.64
b. Foreign 15 868,216 0.08
Foreign Companies 28 124,253,350 11.86
Others 71 75,142,160 717
Totals 2950 1,047,831,480 | 100.00

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company

Habib Bank AG Zurich, Switzerland 534,394,054 51.00

Trade in the shares by executives

Name of Executive Purchase Sale

Mr. Asad Ali Aziz Dharamsey 17,621 -

The expression “executives”means as key management which includes all executives of grade Executive Vice President
and above including any other executive in direct reporting to CEQ.





